
AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   
December 9, 2013 

Immediately following the 6:00 p.m. Plan Commission meeting 

 

1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
3. Roll Call 

 

4. Minutes of Meeting – November 18, 2013 
 

5. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received from the 

public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be taken under 
public comments.) 

 

6. Administrator’s Report 
 

7. Unfinished Business 

 
     A.  Consider renewal application for Scotty’s Mobile Home Park License. 

 
8. New Business 

 

A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Conceptual Plan for the 
proposed Senior Lifestyle Community generally located south of Prairie Ridge 

Boulevard and east of 97th Court within the Prairie Ridge development. 
 

B. Consider purchase of comprehensive backup and storage units for the Information 

Technology Department. 
 

C. Consider construction management services agreement for the proposed Fire 
Station No. 1 project. 
 

D. Consider Resolution #13-28 relating to an amendment to the 2013 budget. 
 

E. Consider a Partnership Agreement between the RecPlex and the Wisconsin Juniors 
Volleyball Club. 
 

9. Village Board Comments 
 

10. Adjournment 
 

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

November 18, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, November 18, 

2013.  Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, 

Monica Yuhas, Steve Kumorkiewicz and Mike Serpe.  Clyde Allen was excused.  Also present were 

Michael Pollocoff, Village Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, 

Community Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Doug 

McElmury; Fire & Rescue Chief; Rocco Vita, Village Assessor; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John 

Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and Recreation Director; Dan Honore, IT 

Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent and Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Two 

citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - NOVEMBER 4, 2013 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any corrections, additions, changes, disagreements?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 18, 2013 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

5. PROPOSED 2014 GENERAL FUND, CLEAN WATER UTILITY, FLEET INTERNAL 

SERVICE FUND AND SOLID WASTE UTILITY BUDGETS. 

 1) Citizen Comments. 

 2) Closing of Budget Hearing. 

 3) Board of Trustee Comments. 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

2 

 4) Resolution #13-22 relating to Adoption of 2014 Budget and Property Tax Levy 

including Capital, Debt Service and other funds of the Village budget. 

 5) Resolution #13-23 relating to the adoption of the 2014 Clean Water Utility Budget. 

 6) Resolution #13-24 relating to the adoption of the 2014 Fleet Internal Service Fund 

Budget. 

 7) Resolution #13-25 relating to the adoption of the 2014 Solid Waste Utility Budget. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, tonight is our hearing on the formal budget process.  So I’d ask that Kathy begin 

the process of presenting the budget for the hearing. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Okay, I’m starting out here with an organization chart on the different budgets that the Village 

does have.  And the ones highlighted or in blue are the ones that we’re going to go over tonight.  

The first one I’ll start with is general government which includes operating capital and debt 

service.  We’ll also touch on the tax incremental districts which have debt service and capital 

improvements, and also our special revenue funds, two police special revenues and one fire.   

 

Also up there the grayish-blue we will also be going over is Clean Water Utility, solid waste and 

fleet internal service fund.  The water utility and sewer utility we’re hoping to bring to you at our 

next meeting, and we’re still working on the rec center. 

 

So general government is broken into three parts.  It’s broken into operating which is our day-to-

day operations, capital which is items purchased over 5,000 that will last longer than a year, and 

then also our debt, paying down the debt that we have borrowed in the past. 

 

I’ll start with the operating part of the budget.  And this is a summary of our operating section of 

the budget.  On this chart there is the 2013 budget, and also the 2014 budget is highlighted in 

blue, and then the change between the two budgets and the proposed.  Overall we’re presenting a 

balanced budget again this year with a two percent overall increase in property tax for the 

operating portion of the budget.   

 

Revenues are up $460,000 and some.  Property tax, as I said, is up two percent or $151,000.  

Other revenues the majority of the categories are up except intergovernmental and other revenues.  

Major increases in revenues is due to building permits, increase of $256,000; the utility tax paid 

by the water utility $50,000; and engineering department services to external as well as internal 

projects of $35,000.  The revenue enhancer here the largest increase is ambulance base rate 

increase of $66,000.  And the rest is a minor increase in fire and rescue permit fees. 

 

Expenses are also up $462,000.  The majority is new programs, as you can see down at the 

bottom $275,000, contingency for $100,000 and public safety for $102,000.  We went over our 

new programs at our October meeting, so we’re recommending here a balanced budget with 

revenue and expenses equal. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

3 

I’ll go over each of those areas in a little bit more detail for the revenues and expenses.  Here’s 

our major revenue categories.  You can see this is where the $462,000 total overall increase 

comes into play.  And property tax, again, the property tax line is only up two percent.  

Intergovernmental revenue is down $38,000, and that’s mainly due to an increase or a decrease in 

law enforcement grants which accounted for $45,000 decrease offset by some minor increases. 

 

License and permits are up $280,000 to $1 million mainly due to building permits which is 

mainly the commercial area but also residential is up also.  Other taxes is up almost $50,000.  

Other taxes include mobile home taxes, the utility tax from the water utility.  It also includes 

property tax penalty, hotel and motel taxes.  This category is up $49,000 mainly due to the 

increase in the utility tax paid by our water utility to our general government. 

 

Public charges for services is up almost $50,000 to $1.1 million.  Engineering and services 

account for the majority of that increase in that category.  Other revenues are down $100,000.  In 

this category are municipal court which are actually up $15,000, parking ticket revenue which 

stayed even, interest income which also stayed even, assessing contracts are down $48,000 due to 

our loss of our assessing contract with Twin lakes.  Also down in this area is the school liaison 

officer, a decrease of $32,000.  And that’s mainly due to the Kenosha Unified School District 

only requesting an officer from us half time.  In the past it’s been a full-time position for one of 

our officers. 

 

Tower leases are also in here and they have stayed even.  And also media communication which 

is advertising in our calendar and newsletters has also stayed even.  So the majority of the 

decrease here offset by some minor increases is due to the assessing contracts and the school 

liaison officer.  And we have the revenue enhancers which I already talked about which is rescue 

fees and fire permits, rescue permits. 

 

So here’s a graphical representation of our sources of revenue.  I’ve taken out property tax 

because that dwarfs the other revenues and doesn’t let you see the actual changes in each of our 

other categories.  Intergovernmental revenue and other revenues are down.  And then the other 

three categories are up, license and permits, other taxes and public charges for services.  The red 

is 2014 proposed, and the blue is 2013 budget. 

 

Now I’ll switch to the other side, the actual expense side of the operating.  This is by category.  In 

the base portion of the operating budget overall personnel costs are up $114,000.  Operating 

expenses are down $26,000 for a total increase of $88,000.  Majority of the increase is in new 

programs, as I said before, and in our contingency.  Public safety, the first line on here, is up 

$100,000.  This includes police, fire and rescue, public safety communications and inspection. 

 

The majority is police and pubic safety attributed to the increase of $100,000.  The Village 

attorney, prosecuting attorney, was moved from the general government to the police, and that 

accounts for $35,000 of it.  Public works is up $57,000.  Included in this category are 

engineering, streets and street lighting.  General government is down $88,000.  This includes our 

Village Board, Municipal Court, Administration, HR, IT, Finance, Assessing and Village Hall.  

It’s down $88,000 mainly because of a decrease in IT of $73,000.   

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

4 

In 2013 we had a one time financial conversion, one time cost for financial conversion of our 

finance and HR software which in 2014 has been reduced quite significantly, because in 2014 we 

only have the last section of our conversion which is utility billing.  And also there was an effort 

made to review software maintenance agreements and eliminate any ones that were not necessary 

for the future and weren’t being used at this time.  CD is up $25,000.  This is due to an increase in 

personnel cost of $13,000 and an increase in attorney fees of $10,000.  Parks is down about 

$10,000, and this is mainly due to personnel allocation in 2014 being less.   

 

We didn’t add or delete any personnel, but personnel can be moved around within the public 

works area.  There are two groups of employees, public works employees and utility employees.  

And the public works people are allocated between public works which is streets and plowing.  

Some of them go in parks - they can help there in the fleet or in clean water.  So depending on 

where the need is for the following year the dollars are shifted but no additional people have been 

added.  The same for utilities.  Utilities may shift around, too, between sewer, water, and so we’re 

not adding any additional people, we’re just shifting dollars around when personnel costs go 

down like that. 

 

The new programs as I mentioned was detailed at the October 21st meeting.  The ones that are 

over $40,000 that account for the majority of the dollars are two new IT people, positions for 

$136,184 total expense with $87,000 being picked up for the general fund.  And the rest, the other 

portion, will be picked up by our enterprise funds.  Also there’s a planning clerk for CD for 

$50,000, and there’s a sign reflectivity replacement program for $44,000, and a one-time program 

to demolish the old Manutronics building for $43,000.  So that’s the major programs, new 

programs, over $40,000 that are in this budget.  So that’s the operating section of our budget. 

 

Now I’m going to shift gears into our capital section.  This is purchases over $5,000 or projects 

over $5,000 that last more than one year.  Again, I’m showing 2013 budget, 2014 proposed, the 

change in both dollars and percent.  We did go over the actual listing of the projects that were 

going to be included in this budget.  This is just a summary of how these are reflected in here and 

the revenue sources to support these projects. 

 

The tax levy will increase $276,000 to cover the cost of the projects that we are proposing for 

2014.  Grants went up $41,000, almost $42,000.  The majority of that increase is because of an 

increase in road grants from the State.  Impact fees we have budgeted at the same level as we had 

budgeted for the previous year.  Actually 2013 is coming in a lot higher than that.  But to be 

conservative we just leave it at that $100,000 mark.   

 

Other includes interest income and the sale of police vehicles.  In 2013 it also includes a transfer 

in from the enterprise fund for their share which is 36 percent of the HR and finance software 

conversion.  This was reduced in 2014 to $23,000 to cover the cost of utility billing software 

conversion.  There is also new revenue at $40,000 annual impact fee in the other number for the 

ATC electrical transmission lines that are currently being installed from our power plant to the 

Zion plant.  So annually we’ll receive $40,000 from the State for those transmission lines.  So 

total revenue increased almost $300,000 from $1.5 million budgeted in 2013 to $1.8 million 

budgeted in 2014.  

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

5 

Capital outlay last year we had $1.2 almost.  This year it has jumped to $9.3 million.  The 

majority, the major projects over $400,000 that are included in this $9.3 million are the self-

contained breathing apparatus which is $416,000.  This is a carryover from 2103.  Road 

maintenance for $650,000.  Fire station number 1 relocation for $5.4 million.  And the ladder 

truck for $1.5 million.  Those are the major projects over $400,000 included in that $9.3.   

 

We’re recommending borrowing for the ladder truck and the fire station number 1 relocation.  

That is the net proceeds there.  Plus also there’s some impact fees in that number also that will 

cover our fire station and also some park improvements.  So we’re looking at actually a loss in 

our fund balance based on the proposed budget.  But we’re actually as I go further in the slides 

I’ll show you what the actual bund balance is.  This will not bring it down to a level that’s 

unacceptable. 

 

Debt service fund.  This is us paying our debt back that we have borrowed in the past.  And, 

again, the same type of slide presentation with the budget and the proposed and the change 

percent and dollar wise.  Tax levy for this section of the general government is going down 

$95,000.  Basically this budget comes in balance, and whatever we need for debt is offset by the 

tax levy.  And actually our debt was going down in terms of principle and interest payments by 

almost $93,000.  Therefore, that whole change also impacts the tax levy and brings that down in 

this category.  Special assessments are pretty level, and interest income also is level.  You can see 

our debt payments went from $1.5 million down to $1.4, almost a $100,000 decrease. 

 

This is our outstanding debt over the years from 2005 through projected 2014.  We haven’t 

borrowed for a while since before 2005 besides refinancing.  So you can see the line go down or 

basically stay level in those couple years there, and went down to a low point in 2013 of $5.2 

million.  It will jump up in 2014 if this budget is approved as we borrow for the fire station and 

the ladder truck.  But it will bounce up to $10.4 or 5 million.   

 

This is total budget, the three categories on one slide showing you the summarized version of the 

operating debt and capital budgets altogether.  The property tax that we’re proposing is 

$9,544,410.  Other revenue sources are all other revenue sources which I have explained in the 

previous slides, and they total $7.2 million.  Expenses also explained in the previous slide total a 

little over $24 million.  We’re proposing to borrow, as I said, for the fire station relocation and 

the ladder truck for almost $7 million.  So this is a net change of a decrease of a little over half a 

million dollars with operating debt with a break even in capital with that reduction.   

 

You can see our fund balanced as of January 1st and how they would be affected by this current 

proposed budget.  We’re looking at overall a fund balance reserve across all funds of 26 percent.  

We’re required by the bonding agencies for sure to be at 15 percent.  But this cushion is very 

good in terms of our bond rating and also for financial security in the future. 

 

How does this affect the property tax bill?  First of all where does our property tax bills go?  I 

have this graph that shows 2013 and 2014 in red.  Kenosha Unified gets the majority of our tax 

collected here at the Village followed by Kenosha County, Pleasant Prairie comes in third at 19 

percent of the total tax bill, then Gateway and the State of Wisconsin.  Comparison of the 2013 to 

2014 mill rates for all taxing bodies, and we just got the assessed value in today.  It wasn’t 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

6 

finalized when I put these slides together.  But Rocco did a very good job of estimating.  He 

actually had it right on in terms of what the assessed value was.  The only change that I had to 

make is that I was off in terms of the allocation between the Bristol School District and the 

Kenosha Unified School District.  So the only change on this slide based on what I received today 

is that the Kenosha Unified levy will drop to 11.84 from 11.86.  Other than that all the rest of the 

numbers will stay the same. 

 

So overall for 2013 our mill rate was $22.77, and this is before all school tax lottery credit and 

school tax credit.  For 2013 we’re looking at $23.37 mill rate.  That’s an increase of 60 cents 

before a school tax credit.  As I mentioned before the Village accounts for 19 percent of these 

taxes.  A median residential household is $188,000, and the Village increase on that household 

will be $11.  And the overall increase will be $113. 

 

And here’s the numbers put together here with the median household assessed value and then 

how much it affects the Village portion and the total overall tax bill.  The last line is actually 

those two numbers actually changed.  The ‘13 I must have input it incorrectly in the first place.  It 

actually is $4,280, and then this year because of the change in my allocation between the Kenosha 

Unified School District and Bristol it’s actually $4,393 for an increase overall of $113.  So all 

we’re waiting for is the lottery credit, first dollar credit and the school tax credit to finish up our 

tax bills for the year.  So that was the general government, their operating, debt and capital. 

 

Now I’m moving to the actual tax incremental districts.  We actually have two districts.  I’ll start 

with District #2 which is our largest district.  And on this one I actually have the 2013 estimate 

because the 2013 estimate actually varies greatly from we had actually budgeted for last year.  

And then I have the 2014 proposed.  And the proposed is based on us amending the TID in 2014 

to include some of the new areas and projects. 

 

So in 2013 our property tax increment pretty much stayed the same of what we had budgeted and 

what we’re estimating.  We’re actually going down in the actual tax increment for 2014 because 

the value in the TID had went down for 2014.  So we’re losing about $340,000 in value in terms 

of increments.  Other revenue includes interest income and special assessments.  And we’re 

looking at a slight increase compared to ‘13 budget and ‘13 estimate. 

 

Capital improvements we had budgeted $8 million to happen this year, but things were 

postponed, and we actually only spent $1.3 million is what our estimate will be for this year.  

Next year we’re looking at $10.6 million, up from last year’s budget of $2.6 but up a lot more 

than that from what we actually spent this year.  The types of projects we’re looking at, and this 

all depends on our amended budget and if it gets approved, we’re looking at changes to River 

View West and LakeView West, 113th Street improvements, the park and ride being started in 

2014 and site improvements west of I-94 for $2 million. 

 

Debt activity shows debt payments and new proceeds.  We were anticipating borrowing money to 

do that $8 million.  We didn’t.  We used the remaining money we had on -- or not all of it but 

most of the money we had from previous borrowings.  To be able to do $10.6 million in 

improvements we’ll have to borrow something like $10.8 million to do those improvements.  The 

fund balance here is at a comfortable $1.5 million ending 2013.  With us borrowing the amount 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

7 

we actually need to do the projects we’ll end a little more than that or similar amount to that when 

we’re done. 

 

This is our smaller district, District #4.  TID #4 is blight elimination for property located at 22nd 

Avenue and 91st Street.  This has happened over five years ago that this blight was eliminated.  

The total project cost was $715,000.  It was financed by a developer.  Once improvements are 

made to this property, right now nothing has been made to the property and it’s pretty much been 

pretty stagnant in terms of the value and the increment that this property receives, but once 

improvements are made to this the tax increment will be generated, and these increments will be 

given back to the developer.  And they are currently being given back to the developer, but he’s 

looking at only about $2,000 a year given back to him to reimburse them for the project cost plus 

interest.  Which they probably won’t get much interest back because we actually have a cap on 

this project of 20 years.  And we’re about five years or more out already.  So as increments are 

being generated for the next 15 years or so that money will go back to the developer depending 

on what he does on the property. 

 

So our special revenue funds are our next category.  There’s three special revenue funds that we 

have.  We have the fire and rescue and we have police and we have federally forfeited which is 

also police special revenue fund.  Revenue is mainly donations except for the federally forfeited 

which is equitable sharing of federal funds.  Expenses include anything from minor equipment to 

our police fund actually supporting our police dog through the donations we have.  We’re looking 

at spending a little bit of money mainly out of the fire and rescue fund and dropping that balance 

from $23,000 to a little over $7,000.  The other funds are staying pretty even.  So this is a very 

small amount between these three funds that we have. 

 

So this is the general government part with the TID and the special revenue funds.  So I’ll stop 

here if you have any questions or comments on this section of the budgets for tonight. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

There’s speculation that after the first of the year the interest rates may rise.  When can we 

borrow for the fire station and the ladder truck?  At what point can we borrow for that?  Do we 

have to wait until the first of the year?  Can we borrow prior to that? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

After the budget has been adopted and posted I believe the Village could go out there.  We’ve 

been watching this.  And one of the reasons that -- we’ve needed the fire station for quite a while 

now.  We’re trying to make due.  But the markets are as favorable as they can be, they have been 

right now.  And that’s one of the things we’re going to watch for.  We’re actually looking at 

maybe two different methods of bonding from either station 1 for the equipment separation with a 

different type of issuance.  My recommendation is that as soon as we have any inclination from 

Gene Schulz that the market is starting to change, and the bond market is kind of fickle.  You 

could take and it could take some kind of hiccup and all of a sudden you’re off to the races.  So 

we know what the rates are now, and I think if they go any lower then there’s something really 

wrong going on and maybe we’ll think about that.   



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

8 

 

But in discussing with him and in talking with some other financial experts my recommendation 

is we probably go out sooner than later after the first of the year.  It’s really hard to sell bonds 

towards Christmas.  The potential buyer dries up but after the first of the year we’ve tried that a 

couple times and we ended going back out again when there was more buyers out there.  So 

probably after the first of the year is what I’d recommend and do that.  We have money that 

we’ve borrowed as Kathy said on the TID, and rather than spend it just to get it spent we’ve hung 

on to it so we don’t start that clock running on stuff.  I think I’d do the same thing with the 

station.  The anticipated time for the station to start would probably be April.  As soon as this 

budget is adopted I’ll bring forward a contract with an architect to start design, four months of 

design and start construction in April.  And we’d probably let the ladder truck specs go right after 

the first of the year. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

We’re only getting one truck for $1 million, right, we’re not getting two. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

And one thing I just want to comment on about the TID, as Kathy said our plan on TID all along 

has not to borrow any more than we have to, but the money we picked up was at a good rate.  

And we don’t want to spend it until we’re sure that the improvements that are going to be made 

are adequate and match up really well with supposed developments.  As developments come in 

they need different things, [inaudible] might be different, water demand might be different, 

sewer.  So rather than put that in the ground and have that be fixed and frozen we want some 

flexibility to be able to negotiate with a possible user of a property just to make sure we spent it 

wisely and accurately.  We don’t want to hang onto the money for the sake of hanging onto it, but 

I don’t want to bury it in the ground and then have to either go back and fix it or live with a 

mistake that I wish we wouldn’t have done.  And that’s worked well for us over the last 20 years 

of both TID 1 and TID 2. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Our rating is AA, right? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

I’m sorry? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Our rating. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Our rating? 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

9 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Yeah, AA, that’s what we got right now. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

AA through S&P and then our Moody’s AA also? 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

No, it’s a little bit different, A2 or something like that. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

A2, yeah, I think it’s A2. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

It hasn’t changed for the last -- it hasn’t changed for a while.  Last time it changed was when 

Moody’s re-evaluated how they evaluated governments in the first place and they upped our 

rating.  But other than that we’ve pretty much been staying the same with stable outlook. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

One other question if I could.  Reserve accounts are at what percentage? 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

They were at 25 across the board. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Good, good. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So what interest rate can we get? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

What interest rate? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Yes. 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

10 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Schulz gets paid a lot of money to figure that out for us. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

What’s the low side? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

It could be the high 2's to 3.  That’s kind of what it looks like today.  That bounces around.  But I 

haven’t seen anything with somebody with our rating would be over 3.5.  And 3.5 people say not 

at 3.5 but 3.5 is a really good rate.  I mean it’s nothing to sneeze at.  I’ve seen -- we’ve had one of 

our treatment plants financed at 10.7. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Wow. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

No further questions? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

So we need to open up the hearing on the general fund budget before proceeding with the other 

budgets. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There were no signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anybody wishing to speak under citizens’ comments on the budget hearing?  Hearing none, move 

onto item 2, closing of the budget hearing.  We need a motion for that. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

So moved. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

11 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And then we have Board of Trustee comments. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Again, Kathy, Mike, department heads doing a great job.  I say it every year.  We look good, the 

whole Village looks good and it’s because of your efforts.  And I thank you for that.  So keep up 

the good work.  Thank you. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Pretty much in the line of Mike I think that everybody is doing an excellent job working on the 

job, Mike, Kathy, department heads, and it shows the level of cooperation and the level of mutual 

understanding with all the departments and the Board.  We worked together on this, so we’re 

proud of what we’ve got here.  They’re doing an excellent job.  Thank you. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

I also would like to reiterate that this is a very sound budget.  It’s very frugal.  We are doing 

things.  I did hear from a few residents in the Village and it was positive.  They were excited 

about the new station.  They just wanted to make sure that all of their services that they’re getting 

now would be intact, and I ensured them that it would.  And for less than $10 a month -- 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

A year. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

-- a year it’s a good bargain for them.  They’re very happy. They’re happy with the snow 

plowing, they’re happy with the garbage being picked up.  They’re happy with police.  They’re 

happy with fire.  And that’s a direct impact from everyone in this room, every department head.  

And you make us look good.  And it allows us to be able to engage with the residents because of 

all the time and energy that is put in.  When it comes to the budgets if we have questions we can 

ask any one of you to sit down with us and break it down and you do, and I’m grateful for that.  

Also, with Mike your knowledge and your foresight into things and your creativity with the 

budget is outstanding.  And, President Steinbrink, your leadership is leading.  You give us 

direction and you provide a base for us to draw from. 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

12 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I’ve only told Steve where to go. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

But being the newest one on the Board you come into this and sometimes it can be a little 

overwhelming.  But it’s nice to know with the support of staff and the Board you can come to a 

rational, reasonable decision that is in the best interest of the residents.  And not everyone can say 

that in the State of Wisconsin.  Communities are struggling.  They don’t have a sound budget.  

Some of them are going bankrupt and we’re not, and it’s because of everyone in this room so 

thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I think what’s amazing is that every year it gets more challenging not because what we do, it’s 

because of what’s done to us by others.  And in the infinite wisdom of those higher up they pretty 

much make Mike’s job a living hell.  And he seems to muddle through it pretty well and come out 

on top all the time it seems like.  And it’s for us as a Board it’s easy to work with because of the 

staff and department heads and the job they do.  As Monica said the citizens even with the 

challenges we face the citizens have a very positive outlook on what they’re seeing in their 

Village, what they’re receiving for services.  And there’s always something new and exciting 

every year for them that seems to really -- whether it’s leaf collection or the new garbage 

collection, we seem to always shake things up a little bit, and everybody is always happy about it.  

it’s always a positive change in the Village.  So kudos to everybody on the job you do here. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

We have fantastic leadership, and that starts with Mike Pollocoff.  And just a comment and 

compliment to the Board.  And I don’t want to act like I’m beating my own drum here, but when 

Mike goes to battle in whatever he does and he has the Board behind him that makes a big 

difference.  If you have a split Board and there are arguments and there are disagreements and 

there are different agendas his job becomes very, very difficult.  So my compliments to Monica, 

Steve, Clyde and John for just supporting Mike and all the department heads and what they do.  

And I can tell you we got the best there is in the business with that man right there.  Thanks, 

Mike. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Thank you. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

13 

John Steinbrink: 

 

No further Board comments we’ll move onto Item 4.   

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

We can put all the resolutions altogether. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

At the end? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yeah. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Okay, we have three other utility type budgets that we’re looking at.  The first one I’ll start with 

is solid waste.  For the new programs there’s only one that we have, and what it is is actually a 

carryover from the general government.  It’s an allocation of the support department’s new 

programs.  And the new programs that are being allocated -- the support departments are IT, HR, 

administration, finance and the Clerk’s department.  And the new programs that were approved in 

the general government budget that has rolled as a percentage to the solid waste fund is the two 

new IT positions and the one position part-time in HR, the open town hall online public forum 

from the administration department, and the backup ISP at Prange and RecPlex for the IT 

department.  So this is the percentage that has been allocated of those new programs to our solid 

waste budget. 

 

Again, I have a comparison of what the 2013 budget was and what we’re proposing for 2014.  

You can see there’s only a slight actually decrease in revenue.  The major reason for that is that 

our recycling rebates are not coming in like they have in the past.  Other than that we’re 

maintaining, we’re not recommending any rate increases for any of our budgets.  For operating 

expenses we’re leaving depreciation the same as the ‘13.  Office expenses a slight decrease.  

Compost expenses which is salaries and benefits and some contracted services basically the same 

with a small increase of $1,593.   

 

Administration is the largest increase here.  It’s mainly wages and benefits in this category.  A 

utility employee manager was promoted, and he initially was over the water and sewer utility, and 

now he oversees all utilities, not just the sewer and water.  Therefore, part of his salary and 

benefits are now allocated to the solid waste fund which has increased part of this administrative 

cost.  Also, allocation of the support departments is IT, HR, finance, administration and the Clerk 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

14 

increased from two percent allocation to this fund to three percent which is a $24,000 increase.  

These costs are being shifted out of water into the solid waste utility. 

 

Garbage is another -- the other leaf collection and recycling is pretty much maintaining, going up 

slightly a little over one to two percent.  Garbage expense is going up $41,000.  Basically the 

2013 budget did not reflect historical wages and benefits for garbage collection.  Therefore, the 

2014 budget has been increased $27,000.  This actually truly reflects the historical wages and 

benefits that we have incurred for 2011 and 2012.  So we’re actually reflecting what actually has 

happened, so there’s not really an increase in the number of hours or stuff that we’re doing.  It’s 

just that we under budgeted our allocations in this area in the past budget.  Also, tipping fees we 

have an increase of $5,000 in the garbage area.  New programs as I mentioned before is allocation 

of the support department’s new programs.  So we’re looking at a budget with a decrease overall 

or a loss actually in the utility because of some of the increases in the administration and that kind 

of stuff.   

 

Non-operating so we start out with an operating loss and then we move into some of our non-

operating categories which includes a grant.  The grant is our recycling grant, and in 2013 we will 

be receiving a $10,000 hazardous waste grant.  Unsure for 2014 if we’ll receive that hazardous 

waste grant so we didn’t budget that to be conservative.  Interest income is down slightly. 

Premium amortization is going down.  Actually also interest expense and amortization expense 

are also going down.  This utility will make its final debt payment in 2014.  This utility will be 

debt free in 2014.  We initially borrowed to purchase our initial garbage and recycling trucks, 

garbage trucks and recycling truck.  So that will be all paid off. 

 

This is the cash of this utility.  We’re estimating the end of the year at a little over $300,000 in 

cash for the utility.  We’re looking at a loss here bringing our cash down to $129,000 which is 

kind of low for the utility.  But as I said before 2014 will be our last debt payment, and our debt 

payment actually jumped from $125,000 to $170,000 and some for 2014 attributing to part of this 

larger activity, negative activity.  But we won’t have any debt payments next year which will help 

us be able to bring this utility back up and start accumulating some cash in here to make it a better 

cash balance at 2015. 

 

Here’s some capital projects that we’re proposing.  We’re required to have fire protection in our 

sanitation garage.  This project was actually approved in 2013, but has been carried over to 2014.  

The $54,000 is for internal cost to extend water and sewer and electrical work to the garage.  And 

then in 2015 we have phase 2 of this project which will be cost to install the system actually in 

the garage for $44,000.  There’s a small amount here for the utility software allocation of a little 

over $2,000 to the cost of the software for the utility billing upgrade that we’re doing in 2014.  So 

that’s the solid waste budget. 

 

Our next budget that’s being presented is our Clean Water Utility budget.  Here’s a similar 

financial comparison for the Clean Water Utility as in previous presentations comparing the 2013 

budget to the 2014 proposed and the change in dollars and percentages.  The operating revenue is 

going up slightly.  This is due to growth and some changes, but there’s no rate increase being 

proposed for this budget.  Operating expenses personnel is up 15 percent.  This is because of an 

increase in the operational labor allocation to this utility.  And along with that also comes our 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

15 

clerical and administration allocation increase, too.  So we have the operational employees that I 

mentioned earlier that we are not proposing an increase in numbers of them but they’ve been 

allocated differently.  The clerical and administrative staff actually follows these employees.  So 

if they work more in a certain utility the clerical and the administrative cost will also go up in that 

utility and down in the ones that they don’t work as many hours in. 

 

Contractual services is pretty much staying even.  The biggest expense in this area is engineering 

fees, consultants and facility lease totaling $62,000 or 84 percent of that category.  Supplies and 

maintenance the biggest expense being the cost of gravel an in crushed stone and the culvert 

installation for $29,000.  This budget section is increasing $4,000.  Depreciation is budgeted in 

2014 similar to 2013 levels.  Non personnel transfer is up.  This department also is up due to 

transferring additional one percent of support departments to this utility.  It’s up from 1.5 percent 

to 2.5 percent of the total 100 percent.  The general government picks up the majority of the 

support departments at 64 percent.  And then we have the water utility, the sewer utility, clean 

water, solid waste and fleet internal service picking up -- not fleet doesn’t pick it up, but those 

other four or five utilities do.  They get the other 34 percent allocated between them.  Oh, there’s 

RecPlex in there also. 

 

New programs allocation is sports department’s new programs as I mentioned before.  The two 

new IT employees and HR part time.  So we’re looking at an operating loss here of $200,000, a 

little bit more than what we had operating loss last year. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Can I ask a question?  If we propose to have an increase in the Clean Water are we going to have 

to show a corresponding reduction in the tax rate with the new law? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No, because we’ve operated this as an enterprise from the very beginning.  So we’ve never used 

any property tax dollars in it.  So we can adjust it as we need to.  Now, until they decide to 

change the law that says something different that’s where we’re at.  And that’s true for sewer, 

water, RecPlex, garbage, all those things have happened off the tax roll.  And Kathy has done a 

really good job of making sure we haven’t had any intermingling of those funds.  Clean water is 

one of the targets in the legislature or storm water. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

They don’t give us any money, though. 

 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

We rolled all that off the tax levy years ago so it doesn’t affect us because we didn’t do it this 

year.  Okay, non-operating section of this budget we’re looking at interest income similar.  The 

grant last year was for south Kenosha, and we are not budgeting for any grants or expecting any 

grants in 2014.  Cash flow wise this utility is a little less than $2 million.  We went up slightly or 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

16 

we’re looking at going up slightly from the 2013 to 2014 proposed.  This utility is basically 

building cash reserves for future replacement of infrastructure currently valued at over $22 

million for this utility.  So it’s basically building reserves and doing whatever projects we need to 

do as we are building the reserves over the years to replace an aging infrastructure in the future.  

Right now this is standing pretty good.  We need to continue to grow that to help us replace that 

$22 million in the future.  As for projects we’re only looking at two things again here, the 

Chateau Eau Plaines storm which is reconstructing drainage swales between 115th and 112th 

Avenue to the wetlands for a little over half a million dollars.  And, again, the utility software 

conversion allocation to this utility. 

 

The final budget presentation tonight is the fleet internal service fund.  There was one new 

program recommended to have the part-time mechanic promoted to full time.  And we are 

recommending that this new program be approved.  The fleet division consists of one full-time 

mechanic right now and one part-time mechanic.  This new program will retain the trained part-

time mechanic we currently have to help the Village maintain its large fleet and allow the actual 

utility and highway department staff to be working the field instead of helping the mechanic fix 

equipment and vehicles. 

 

Here’s the summary of our operating section of this budget.  We’re looking at -- actually we 

budgeted for a decrease in operating revenue.  We looked at the trends over the last couple years 

and brought it down to be more conservative.  We’re hoping to be over that $1.5 million, but if 

we’re not we’re still building a good fund balance to help replace equipment in the future. 

 

Personnel we’re looking at a reduction of allocation to this utility.  Part of it is due to the 

proposed new part-time mechanic becoming full time.  Contractual services we’re maintaining 

that area.  Supplies and maintenance we’re going up $26,000.  The main reason for this increase 

in supplies and maintenance is due to fuel which is up $18,000 and vehicle maintenance supplies 

which are up $6,000.   

 

Insurance went down some.  Depreciation has gone up, and the reason for that is to reflect the 

depreciation on the vehicles that have been transferred from the general government which were 

IT, assessing, administration and inspection vehicles and the RecPlex vehicles that are transferred 

here.  Fleet internal service is staying the same.  This is used by the fleet actually to do fleet type 

work.  And then our new programs which I mentioned before is the promotion of the part-time 

mechanic to full time. 

 

This is the non-operating section of this budget.  Interest income we’re reflecting a decrease of 

$1,000.  Gain and loss on sale.  This category all depends on what equipment and what vehicles 

we have to sell or trade each year.  We’re anticipating an actual increase in the sale of equipment 

that we have based on what we’re going to be trading in for the coming year.  Grant last year was 

for a TR bus which we didn’t get.  This year we’re not expecting any grants. 

 

Transfer in for 2013 is the RecPlex vehicles including vans and the TR bus coming into the fleet 

internal service fund and being maintained.  And each month the actual RecPlex and general 

government gets charged based on the number of miles they actually drive the vehicles, and all 

the cost of maintaining and replacing these vehicles is in this fleet internal service fund.  Capital 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

17 

contributions in 2013 is the general government vehicles being transferred in and contributed to 

the fleet internal service fund. 

 

Cash-wise this utility is maintaining around a million dollars.  They’re looking at estimating at 

the end at almost $1.2 million this year and almost $1.1 million for next year which is a good 

reserve.  We usually spend around $700,000 on new equipment each year and bring in a little 

over $1 million, $1.5 million to help with the operating of it and also the replacement of vehicles 

or buying new vehicles and equipment. 

 

So I’m going to turn this over now to John to explain what he’s proposing to be bought in the 

fleet internal service fund. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board I’m just going to be brief with this.  We’re not going to 

go through all the pictures.  But I do guarantee you that these vehicles that we’re getting rid of are 

at the end of their life cycle.  The first thing that we’re looking at is a single axle vehicle.  We’d 

like to get something with a grapple [inaudible].  So this really isn’t a plow truck, but it’s going to 

be like a grapple truck, something we can use for picking up white goods, something we can use 

for picking up logs, brush, any sort of circumstance like that.  We’ve been very successful 

purchasing used vehicles at various auctions around the U.S., and we plan on continuing doing 

that with this grapple vehicle. 

 

We’re looking at two pickup trucks purchasing through the State contractor or State of 

Wisconsin.  We’re probably saving about $15,000 per vehicle as a new vehicle versus buying 

something used at an auction.  We’ve been getting used pickup trucks like a three quarter ton 

pickup truck, four wheel drive, nothing really fancy, but about $24,000 which is much cheaper 

than you can buy it off the lot from a dealer.  And you’re not getting that initial 20,000 miles like 

you would buying something used.  So it’s been a really good value. 

 

Rocco’s done a really good job with the appraisal fleet, so we are going to continue that 

replacement and replacing a vehicle for the assessor’s for next year.  The RecPlex van is going to 

be the same thing.  We’re actually going to take that RecPlex van coming from RecPlex and 

actually reincorporating that as a utility van, use it for reading meters, hydro flushing, just 

standard maintenance and then pick up a new, more reliable van for the RecPlex staff. 

 

We’re looking at a ball field finisher for $25,000.  The hard ball over at RecPlex has really 

increased over the last couple years.  They’re running almost six diamonds every day from end of 

March until early November.  And so this will just be a piece of equipment that will make us 

more efficient prepping the ball diamonds for RecPlex and all their activities that they have. 

 

A zero turn excavator is a mini excavator on rubber tracks, a little bit smaller than some of our 

larger ones.  It’s something you can haul behind like a F550 two ton truck.  We’ll be using it for 

water main breaks.  It will take the place of our combination backhoe.  And what’s nice about it is 

that it spins 360 degrees.  It’s on rubber tracks so it doesn’t scarf up the road at all.  And it’s 

going to be a much more efficient vehicle for us to use. 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

18 

 

The replacement of our video camera, our video camera is ten years old.  It’s just exceeded its 

useful life.  It’s in harsh conditions in the sewer and the storm on a regular basis, and it’s starting 

to nickel and dime us, so we’re going to go ahead and replace that. 

 

Compost turner for processing our compost at the compost site, and then replacing a front end 

loader that we’ve had in public works since 1994 with 13,000 hours which is a lot, a lot of hours.  

And it’s just worn out.  We’ve gone through and replaced everything that we can replace once, 

and it’s really tired and worn out.  And so that’s a summary of our capital for the fleet internal 

service. 

 

Okay, and also some attachments.  With the addition of the new mechanic you’re looking at an 

additional lift to have a portable lift that we’re going to keep in the shop.  And so we can have a 

garbage truck or a vehicle on one hoist and still do service and other pm maintenance on a 

different bay.  A grapple bucket for the track excavator for cleaning out creeks, doing like this off 

road excavation, grappling, moving brush, trees, cleaning out beaver dams, stuff like that.  And so 

that’s the attachments. 

 

And then on the software end of it we’re actually looking at a fleet maintenance software for 

$25,000 that will better help us track the details, what kind of filter, how many quarts of oil that 

we do, it will track our inventory for us.  And the updating our Gas Boy system which is original 

at the Prange since 1994.  It uses a very old operating system, a very old database.  We met with 

Dan the IT director and he supports us with this upgrade of the gas boy to kind of bring us into 

the new IT era.  And so we’ll be better able to run reports and query.  And then it’s going to work 

much nicer with some of our other software that we had because it will be in the same database.  

And so that completes everything for the fleet internal service. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

So with that I’d be recommending that we adopt the resolutions.   Before we do that I’d like to 

thank the Board for their support.  But what I’d really like to point out for the record is that it’s 

really unlike some levels of government, many levels of government or a local government that 

the Village has allowed a professional staff to develop that manages and operates and guides this 

Village everyday.  And many of the department head here serve as leaders of professional 

associations in their field.  They’re on committees that give guidance to the State.   

 

I know one of the reasons we exceed is that the first thing is that everyone here is exceedingly 

competent.  Sometimes that’s called into question, people like to question that when they want to 

look at the dark side or create a dark side about local government.  But this local government is 

exceedingly competent.  And we’ve proved it time and time again, and we’ve been recognized by 

other entities for our competence.  And with all these budget numbers we have even with some 

large funds that we’re outlaying this next year for some capital improvements we’re a people 

based organization.  Our primary budget is the kind of people we hire, how much they 

accomplish, how well they accomplish it, and how well they listen to what the needs are of 

people and finding innovative ways to deliver service and get that done.  The Village is truly 

blessed to have a competent staff and read by very competent department heads.   



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

19 

 

And I’d just like to follow up on what Trustee Serpe said is you don’t have to think too far about 

or read the paper to find out that some boards have not tackled the responsibility of creating good 

public policy in a productive environment even when people disagree on things like they have in 

Pleasant Prairie.  The community for years and years and years has had a history of responsible 

political discussion and management with few aberrations and it shows.  I mean the games are 

really non-existent in our desire to get things solved and worked out is prevalent.   So I just want 

to recognize that everybody does this. 

 

And I think when you look at our reserves, our reserves are a product of our departments’ success 

in managing their budgets and getting what they need to get, getting the things done and still 

having some money left to put back for the rainy day.  And there was a number of years where 

the Pleasant Prairie reserve fund was greater than that of the State of Wisconsin.  You have to be 

proud of a big number, but you need to know that we can address a lot of problems that occur and 

we’re not fearful of dealing with an issue as it arises because we have the reserves and the 

resources to back that up.  So with that I’d recommend that the Board adopt Resolution 13-22 for 

the adoption of the 2014 budget and property tax levy including capital, debt service and other 

funds of the Village budget. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

So moved. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-22 RELATING TO ADOPTION OF  

2014 BUDGET AND PROPERTY TAX  LEVY INCLUDING CAPITAL, DEBT SERVICE AND 

OTHER FUNDS OF THE VILLAGE BUDGET; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION  

CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve Resolution 13-23. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

20 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any discussion on this?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-23 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION 

OF THE 2014 CLEAN WATER UTILITY BUDGET; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ;  

MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move to approve 13-24. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Monica in adoption of Resolution 13-24.  Any further discussion on 

this item?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-24 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION  

OF THE 2014 FLEET INTERNAL SERVICE FUND BUDGET; SECONDED BY YUHAS;  

MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve Resolution 13-25. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve for adoption of Resolution 13-25.  Further discussion?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-25 RELATING TO THE ADOPTION  

OF THE 2014 SOLID WASTE UTILITY BUDGET; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ;  

MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I don’t think it’s unusual that there’s no discussion on these motions because of the thoroughness 

that everybody’s gone through in discussing these and being kept up to speed on what’s happened 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

21 

as the process as moved along.  So that again is something you don’t see in other government 

around.  And we thank you for that, too, for making our job in looking at this budget quite easy. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

No signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anybody wishing to speak under citizens’ comments? 

 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – None. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider an award of contract to purchase turnout gear racks and related storage 

equipment for the Fire Stations. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, this is an item that we were able to get through this year before it rolls over to the 

next year.  It provides a place to hang turnout gear so it’s accessible as our personnel go to get on 

the truck and it hangs it up so it can dry.  Two bids were selected.  The low bid was submitted by 

Gear Grid at $19,956.  Ready Rack was the second bidder at $20,607.  And the Chief is 

recommending that a contract be awarded to Gear Grid. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And this is part of [inaudible] movable to the new station then? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes, it goes with us. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

22 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Any further discussion? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I could have used this set cooking those steaks a couple weeks ago. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

I just have one quick question for the chief.  Chief, is this what it’s going to look like? 

 

Chief McElmury: 

 

Yeah, that is the gear [inaudible]. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

What are you going to do with the $44 you’re going to save here?  There’s a $44 savings here 

because it was budgeted for $20,000, $19,556, $44 difference.  Excellent. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We concluded Item A, right? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We had a motion.  We need a vote. 

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO GEAR GRID IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $19,956 TO PURCHASE TURNOUT GEAR RACKS AND RELATED STORAGE 

EQUIPMENT FOR THE FIRE STATIONS; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 B. Consider Resolution #13-26 authorizing the placing of utilities and special charges 

on the tax roll. 
 

Kathy Goessl: 

 

Mr. President, the majority of this $465,000 is actually delinquent utility bills of $350,000 and 

some, delinquent invoices for $41,000, the majority of that being the horse farm invoice that 

we’re placing on that property.  The other chunk is special assessments being rolled onto the tax 

roll of a little less than $55,000 for a total of $465,085. 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

23 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I make a motion to adopt Resolution 13-26. 

 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Monica for adoption of Resolution 13-26.  Any further discussion on 

this item?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-26 AUTHORIZING THE 

PLACING OF UTILITIES AND SPECIAL CHARGES ON THE TAX ROLL; SECONDED BY 

YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

C. Consent  

 

 1) Approve Operator License Applications on file. 

 2) Approve a lot line adjustment for the property at 10368 Bain Station Road and the 

property to the north located at 8423 104th Avenue. 

 3) Approve a Certified Survey Map to dedicate road right-of-way and create two 

parcels within Ingram Park. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move approval. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve for adoption of the Consent Agenda.  Any discussion on any of 

the items on the Consent Agenda?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1-3 AS PRESENTED; 

SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

November 18, 2013 

 

 

24 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 YUHAS MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION 

CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:15 P.M. 



Office of Village Clerk 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

TO:  Village Board Trustees 

 

FROM: Jane M. Romanowski  

  Village Clerk 

 

DATE:  December 4, 2013 

 

RE:  Scotty’s Mobile Home Park 2014 License 

 

 

On December 2, 2013, the Village Board tabled consideration of the application to renew the 

mobile home park license for Scotty’s located at 5310 75
th

 Street pending an update of the 

outstanding building and zoning violations. 

 

Ralph Nichols, Senior Building Inspector, conducted an inspection on December 3
rd

 and the 

following violations still exist: 

 

 Lot 13 is a vacant, dilapidated unit which should be removed from the mobile home park. 

 

 Lot 15 is a vacant, dilapidated unit which should be removed from the mobile home park. 

 

 Lot 27 – the stairs need to be repaired (the skirting has been repaired). 

 

 

* * * * * 
 



1 
 

Consider the request of Matt Phillips, agent for Senior Lifestyle Corporation for approval of a 

Conceptual Plan for the proposed Senior Lifestyle Community that will provide 96 senior 

living dwelling units in phase 1 and 66 dwelling units in phase 2 on the vacant 9 acre 

property generally located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and east of 97th Court within the 

Prairie Ridge development.   

 

Recommendation:  Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve the 

Conceptual Plan subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report of 

December 9, 2013. 

 



2 
 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF DECEMBER 9, 2013 

Consider the request of Matt Phillips, agent for Senior Lifestyle Corporation for approval of a 

Conceptual Plan for the proposed Senior Lifestyle Community that will provide 96 senior 

living dwelling units in phase 1 and 66 dwelling units in phase 2 on the vacant 9 acre 

property generally located south of Prairie Ridge Blvd. and east of 97th Court within the 

Prairie Ridge development.   

 

The petitioner is requesting the approval a Conceptual Plan for the proposed two-phase 162 

senior housing unit development on property located generally south of Prairie Ridge 

Boulevard, between 97th Court and 96th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge development.  The 

proposed Senior Lifestyle Community will provide 96 senior assisted living units in Phase 1 

and 66 senior living units in Phase 2 on the vacant 9-acre property.  Phase 1 is anticipated 

to begin in the spring, 2014. No exact time frame has been set for Phase 2. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  On May 17, 2004 the Village Board approved Conceptual 

Plans for the proposed Arbor Ridge Condominium Development including 15-2 unit 

buildings, 5-4 unit buildings; and 8-6 unit buildings for a total of 98 units and Prairie Ridge 

Senior Campus including a total of 521 senior apartments to be constructed in Phases as 

specified below: 

 Phase 1:  120 senior living unit building on 6.818 acres (constructed prior to May 

2004) 

 Phase 2:  71 senior living unit building on 4.254 acres (constructed in 2006) 

 Phase 3:  70 senior living unit building on 3.349 acres  (proposed for Tax Parcel 

Number 91-4-122-084-0413 south of phase 2 is still vacant land) 

 Phases 4 through 7:  A 260 total units within two buildings were identified to be 

constructed on 9.207 acres (Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-082-0412)--which is the 

parcel proposed to be developed by Senior Lifestyle) 

The first phase of the Arbor Ridge Condominium Development (15-2 unit buildings) was 

proposed and approved in 2005 as a part of this development west of 97th Court.  At that 

time, VK development and the Village entered into a Development Agreement to install the 

public and private improvements related to the areas described above.  The first two phases 

of the Senior Campus have been constructed, but the Arbor Ridge Condominium (15 2 unit 

building) have not been constructed.  At this time, the Conceptual Plan for the remaining 

expansions of Arbor Ridge Condominiums (5-4 unit buildings and 8- 6 unit buildings), along 

with Phases 3-7 of the Prairie Ridge Senior Housing development have expired.  

The Development Agreement relating to the public and private improvements pertaining to 

Phases 1-7 and the Arbor Ridge Condominiums is still in effect.  The Developer’s engineer 

(Nielson Madsen Barber) is preparing a cost evaluation of all outstanding improvements to 

help determine if the current letter of credit is sufficient.  Cost estimates need to be 

submitted and reviewed at this time to determine if the letter of credit amount is sufficient 

and how the letter of credit will be allocated to the remaining overall development phasing 

of Arbor Ridge Condominium development. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, 

the public and private improvements yet to be completed for this development 

include: 

Road Improvements/Street Trees/Street Lights/Street Signs/Sidewalks 

1. 97th Court shall be fully improved from 94th Avenue to Prairie Ridge Boulevard, 

including sidewalks on both sides and parkway street trees.  97th Court shall be 

constructed to the Village’s new standard composite pavement section (7-inches 



3 
 

concrete overlaid with 1.75-inch HMA).  Plans, specifications, and contract/bidding 

documents for these improvements shall be submitted and reviewed.  

2. 96th Avenue from 97th Court to 81st Street shall be fully improved to support the 

development.  Also, the existing portion of 96th Avenue from 81st Street to Prairie 

Ridge Boulevard shall be final paved. 

3. Parkway street trees shall be installed along the 97th Court (east and west side), 96th 

Court (west side), 96th Court (missing trees along the east side), 81st Street (missing 

trees along the north side), and a street tree is missing along Prairie Ridge 

Boulevard.  A detailed landscaping plan showing the tree types (minimum of a 2” 

caliper) and locations shall be prepared.  Street tree type(s) shall be listed in the 

current Village of Pleasant Prairie approved street tree list. The planting details 

including the mulch bed, staking and tie downs shall be provided. No substitutions 

shall be made without prior approval from the Village. 

4. Street lights (residential type-concrete base and pole with Sheridan fixture) shall be 

installed along 97th Court and 96th Avenue. 

5. Street signs shall be installed pursuant to Village requirements. 

6. Concrete sidewalks, 5 feet in width, shall be installed in the right-of-way on both 

sides of the development -97th Court and 96th Avenue abutting the development. 

Sanitary / Water / Storm  

7. The proposed sanitary service for the phase 1 building requires a sanitary extension 

from 98th Circle.  The sanitary extension from existing manhole of 98th Circle to the 

manhole on 97th Court shall be a public sanitary sewer main extension requiring the 

following: 

a. Plan and profile drawings and specifications. 

b. Approval letter from SEWRPC. 

c. WDNR approval.  Developer’s engineer shall submit to WDNR after Village 

approval of plans.  WDNR submittal forms shall be submitted to the Village for 

review. 

d. City of Kenosha Water / Wastewater Utility approval.  To be submitted by the 

Village upon Village approval of plans. 

8. The existing water main along 97th Court is shown outside the pavement area in 

several locations which conflicts with the plan design.  Is the location from utility 

hotline markings? 

9. The backfill for the sanitary sewer service connection within the pavement area of 

96th Avenue shall be slurry.  Also, the sewer extension under 97th Court shall be 

backfilled with slurry. This shall be noted on the plans. 

10. There are several storm sewer catch basins along the existing barrier curb line within 

the proposed entrance drives.  The plans shall show detail regarding the new 

cover/casting etc. for these catch basins within the new depressed curbs. 

Senior Lifestyles Development Agreement:  A new or amended Development 

Agreement between the Village and the new developer, financial security, executed contract 

documents, performance and payments bonds, insurance certificates, field staking and 

inspection cost estimates, street tree, street lighting, sidewalks, administrative fees, and 

any outstanding fees will be required for the development of the property in order to 

complete the previous private and public improvements. 



4 
 

CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR PROPOSED SENIOR LIFESTYLE PROJECT:  The petitioner is 

proposing to develop the 9-acres site for a 162 senior housing unit development within two 

phases--Phase 1 will include 96 units and Phase 2 will include 66 units.  The senior housing 

community will include central dining facilities, a multi-purpose room, fitness center and an 

arts and crafts room.  According to the application, as part of their monthly fee, residents 

will have access to meals and other services such as housekeeping, linen service, 

transportation, and social and recreational activities.  Supportive care and assisted living 

services from trained employees will also be available to residents who require assistance 

with activities of daily living (ADLs) including management of medications, bathing, 

dressing, toileting, ambulating and eating) and residents who have Alzheimer’s disease or 

other forms of dementia. 

Phase 1: 96-unit Assisted Living Facility with 61 surface parking areas. 

The living units will be located within a three (3) story building.   On the first level each 

of the two living are wings include 16 units with a common living and dining area with 

kitchen facilities and a screen porch.  In addition, there is access to an outdoor 

garden/patio area. The two (2) wings are connected to a one story area that will include 

a larger dining and living room with a multi-purpose room, craft room with an attached 

greenhouse, fitness room, salon and therapy room.  This common area will also have 

two elevators to access the upper levels.  The second and third floor will provide for a 

total of 32 living units and no commons living spaces.  A majority of the units are 1 

bedroom units. There are a limited number of efficiencies and 1 bedroom units with a 

small living area.  

Pursuant to the Village Zoning Ordinance, the minimum number of parking spaces not 

including handicapped accessible parking required for Assisted Living is 1 space per 6 

patient beds, plus 1 space per employee on the largest work shift, plus 1 space per staff 

member and visiting doctor.  The 61 spaces provided appear to be adequate.  This 

number shall be verified when the number of employees and the number of staff 

members and visiting doctors.  The number of handicapped accessible parking spaces is 

based on the requirements of the State code. 

Phase 2:  99-unit Senior Housing Facility with 51 underground parking spaces and 

48 surface parking spaces.   

Pursuant to the Village Zoning Ordinance, the minimum number of parking spaces for 

senior housing is 1 space per 2 bedrooms.  The development will have 99 bedrooms; 

therefore 50 parking spaces plus the required handicapped accessible parking are 

required.  The parking meets the minimum requirement.  (A part of the PUD, the Village 

will require a minimum of 50 parking spaces underground (50% of the number of units.) 

The developer should submit a conceptual floor plans and conceptual elevations. 

Zoning Map and Text Amendments and Conditional Use Permit:  The current zoning 

of the property is R-11 UHO, Multi-Family Residential District with a UHO, Urban 

Landholding Overlay District.  The proposed Senior Lifestyle project is classified as a 

Community Living Arrangement in the Village Zoning Ordinance, which is allowed within the 

R-11 District with approval of a Conditional Use Permit and provided the additional 

requirements pursuant to Section 420-148 B (22) of the Village Zoning Ordinance related to 

Community living arrangements in the R-11 Districts. 

 The net density shall not exceed 21 units per acre. (The development of 8.953 net-

acre property with a 162-units provide a net density of 18.5 units per acre.)   

 The facility shall be in conformance with all State statutory requirements. 



5 
 

 The petitioner shall submit as part of the application for the Conditional Use Permit, 

the type of community living arrangement proposed, the purpose for the community 

living arrangement, the type of individuals that will reside on the property and the 

plan for supervising and administering the needs of the residents. 

 If applicable, a report and license from the Department of Health and Family 

Services relating to the suitability of the property for use as a community living 

arrangement shall be submitted as part of the application for a conditional use 

permit. The loss of any license shall operate as an automatic revocation of the 

Conditional Use Permit. Permits shall not be transferable to another location or 

holder without approval of another Conditional Use Permit. 

 The property and the structures shall be serviced by municipal sanitary sewer and 

municipal water. 

 The lot shall be a minimum of three (3) acres.  (Lot size is 8.953 acres) 

In addition, the property is proposed to be rezoned to R-11, Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) for this development is being proposed.  Developing the property as a PUD will 

allow for more flexibility with some dimensional requirements of the Village 

Zoning Ordinance provided there is a defined benefit to the community.  The Village 

staff will begin preparing a detailed PUD Ordinance for review by the Developer, the Plan 

Commission and Village Board upon approval of the Conceptual Plan and submittal of the 

Final Development Plans. 

At this time the only modification from the Zoning Ordinance that is proposed to be included 

in the PUD relates to the building height.  The Phase 1 building is proposed to be 45 feet 

high wherein the R-11 District allows for buildings to be a maximum height of 35 feet.  As 

the detailed Development Plans are prepared, additional items may be included in the PUD 

related to dimensional requirements, unit sizes (pursuant to the R-11 District regulations 

efficiency and 1-bedroom units shall be a minimum of 700 square feet) and signage 

requirements.   As part of the PUD, the Village will require a minimum of 50 parking spaces 

underground (50% of the number of units). 

The PUD Ordinance will be drafted and considered by the Plan Commission and the Village 

Board after the final plans are submitted for review.  The required public hearing for the 

PUD Zoning Text and Zoning Map Amendments will be held at the same time as the Plan 

Commission and Village Board considers the Conditional Use Permit, the CSM and the 

required Development Agreement as discussed above.  

 

 

 

Recommendations: 

Village staff recommends that the Village Board approve the Conceptual Plan subject to 

the above comments and the following conditions: 

1. The Conceptual Plan approval will be valid for a period of one (1) year.  Prior to the 

expiration of the Conceptual Plan, the CSM (if proposed), Final Development Plans 

and the PUD, Planned Unit Development and Development Agreement shall be 

approved by the Village and building permits shall be issued.  

2. A new or amended Development Agreement will be required for the development of 

the property to complete the following public and private items addressed in the 



6 
 

previous Development Agreement to service the proposed Senior Lifestyle Project, 

including: 

Road Improvements/Street Trees/Street Lights/Street Signs/Sidewalks 

 97th Court shall be fully improved from 94th Avenue to Prairie Ridge 

Boulevard, including sidewalks on both sides and parkway street trees.  97th 

Court shall be constructed to the Village’s new standard composite pavement 

section (7-inches concrete overlaid with 1.75-inch HMA).  Plans, 

specifications, and contract/bidding documents for these improvements shall 

be submitted and reviewed.  

 96th Avenue from 97th Court to 81st Street shall be fully improved to support 

the development.  Also, the existing portion of 96th Avenue from 81st Street to 

Prairie Ridge Boulevard shall be final paved. 

 Parkway street trees shall be installed along the 97th Court (east and west 

side), 96th Court (west side), 96th Court (missing trees along the east side), 

81st Street (missing trees along the north side), and a street tree is missing 

along Prairie Ridge Boulevard.  A detailed landscaping plan showing the tree 

types (minimum of a 2” caliper) and locations shall be prepared.  Street tree 

type(s) shall be listed in the current Village of Pleasant Prairie approved street 

tree list. The planting details including the mulch bed, staking and tie downs 

shall be provided. No substitutions shall be made without prior approval from 

the Village. 

 Street lights (residential type-concrete base and pole with Sheridan fixture) 

shall be installed along 97th Court and 96th Avenue. 

 Street signs shall be installed pursuant to Village requirements. 

 Concrete sidewalks, 5 feet in width,  shall be installed in the right-of-way on 

both sides of the development -97th Court and 96th Avenue abutting the 

development. 

Sanitary Sewer / Water / Storm Sewer 

 The proposed sanitary service for the phase 1 building requires a sanitary 

extension from 98th Circle.  The sanitary extension from existing manhole of 

98th Circle to the manhole on 97th Court shall be a public sanitary sewer main 

extension requiring the following: 

o Plan and profile drawings and specifications. 

o Approval letter from SEWRPC. 

o WDNR approval.  Developer’s engineer shall submit to WDNR after Village 

approval of plans.  WDNR submittal forms shall be submitted to the 

Village for review. 

o City of Kenosha Water / Wastewater Utility approval.  To be submitted by 

the Village upon Village approval of plans. 

 The existing water main along 97th Court is shown outside the pavement area in 

several locations which conflicts with the plan design.  Is the location from utility 

hotline markings? 

 The backfill for the sanitary sewer service connection within the pavement area of 

96th Avenue shall be slurry.  Also, the sewer extension under 97th Court shall be 

backfilled with slurry. This shall be noted on the plans. 



7 
 

 There are several storm sewer catch basins along the existing barrier curb line 

within the proposed entrance drives.  The plans shall show detail regarding the 

new cover/casting etc. for these catch basins within the new depressed curbs. 

The construction timing of roadway improvements with respect to the building 

construction shall be discussed and clarified.   In addition, the Developer’s Engineer 

(NMB) shall prepare a cost evaluation of all outstanding improvements to help 

determine if the current letter of credit is sufficient.  Cost estimates need to be 

submitted and reviewed at this time to determine if the letter of credit amount is 

sufficient and how the letter of credit will be allocated to the remaining overall 

development phasing of Arbor Ridge. 

3. The Senior Living Facility is proposed to be developed as a Planned Unit 

Development (PUD).  Developing as a PUD will allow for more flexibility with 

some dimensional requirements of the Village Zoning Ordinance provided 

there is a defined benefit to the community.  The Village staff will begin 

preparing a detailed PUD Ordinance for review by the Developer, the Plan 

Commission and Village Board upon approval of the Conceptual Plan and submittal of 

the Final Development Plans. 

4. Will the Phase 1 and Phase 2 sites be on separate parcels?  If so, a Certified Survey 

Map (CSM) will be required to divide the site into 2 parcels. If not, then the PUD 

ordinance language will need to allow two (2) buildings on one parcel. 

5. The Prairie Ridge Commercial Association must approve the detailed site plans for 

the development.  Written approval shall be submitted to the Village prior to 

issuance of permits. 

6. The landscaping of the site shall be in compliance with the Prairie Ridge Commercial 

Covenants. 

7. The Conceptual Plan has been reviewed for conformance with generally accepted 

engineering practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the 

design engineer is responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and 

supplemental data and for their compliance with all state and local codes, 

ordinances, and procedures. Modifications to the plans, etc. may be required should 

errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and detailed engineering 

plans are prepared and reviewed.  The following changes shall be made to the plans 

prior to resubmittal: 

a. See attached changes to sheets C-3, C-10 and A-2. 

b. The renderings and amount of brick work and detail shall be modified on the 

plans.  See attached staff mark-up on Sheet A5.  Additional brick, window 

modifications, and detailing shall be provided.  Sample boards, colors and 

materials shall be provided for review and approval.   

c. On Sheet A1:  The depiction of the “Future Development (by others)”, the 

former Arbor Ridge Condominium development, should be eliminated (if it’s 

not planned to be developed in that configuration anymore). 

d. On Sheet A2 the following changes shall be made:   

i. In the Zoning Data chart, the Proposed Zoning Classification should be 

“R-11 (PUD)”. 

ii. The total area of impervious surface shall be provided on the plans. 



8 
 

iii. The total area of landscape/open space (non-impervious) shall be 

provided on the plans (a minimum of 25% is required.  However, as 

part of the PUD a greater open space area may be required. 

iv. The 5 ft. wide concrete public sidewalk shall be the dominant 

improvement when traversing the private driveway entrances on the 

site.  In other words, the concrete sidewalk shall cross through the 

paved driveways.  Depict as such (also depict as such on Sheet C-3 of 

the Construction Plans). 

v. If Phase 2 (Senior Living) is to have an outdoor trash/recycling 

enclosure, then similar to Phase 1, it shall be attached to the building.  

Or, the trash and recycling containers may be stored within the 

underground parking area.  Need to specify. 

vi. Dimension the width of all driveways at the street property lines 

(right-of-way lines), 35 feet in width is the maximum allowed. 

vii. Label the parking lot pavement material (e.g. asphalt, concrete). 

viii. Label the private on-site walking path pavement material (e.g. 

asphalt, concrete). 

ix. Dimension the width of the on-site private walking paths. 

x. Label the curb & gutter. 

e. On Sheets A2 and L1, Label the sections of Phase 1 curb and gutter, where 

the eventual access points between Phases 1 & 2 will be connected, as “Curb 

and gutter to be removed upon construction of Phase 2”. 

f. Provide a chart on the plans that specify the square footage of each unit type. 

g. On Sheet L1, change notation of “Parkway Tree” to “Street Tree”. 

h. The grading plan is missing the existing contour layer.  Show the existing 

contours in the grading plan. 

i. Provide additional information within the open space areas to show positive 

drainage.  Example locations are as follows: 

 Between the berm and parking lot located at the south end of phase 2. 

 Between the berm and building on the west side of phase 2. 

 Open area within the drive circle in phase 1. 

o. Provide a grading plan for phase 1, showing temporary grading tie-ins to 

existing elevations along the phase 2 boundary. 

p. Erosions control measures and locations will need to be included in the 

preliminary/final engineering plans. 

q. Provide spot grades along the sidewalk. 

r. It appears that a Section Corner Monument will be disturbed by the site 

development.  Prior to disturbance of the section corner, the Developer shall 

contact the SEWRPC, who acts as the County Surveyor to coordinate the 

monument disturbance, survey tie in, and replacement.  A note shall be 

placed on the plans indicating the coordination requirement prior to 

disturbance. 



9 
 

s. The existing water main along 97th Court is shown outside the pavement area 

in several locations which conflicts with the plan design.  Is the location from 

utility hotline markings? 

t. The backfill for the sanitary sewer service connection within the pavement 

area of 96th Avenue shall be slurry.  Also, the sewer extension under 97th 

Court shall be backfilled with slurry. This shall be noted on the plans. 

u. There are several storm sewer catch basins along the existing barrier curb 

line within the proposed entrance drives.  The plans shall show detail 

regarding the new cover/casting etc. for these catch basins within the new 

depressed curbs. 

v. The locations of the pumper pad bump outs shall be discussed with the Fire 

Department as the locations do not appear to provide easy ingress / egress.  

Also, the need for any additional hydrants should be reviewed and discussed 

with the Department. 

w. Has the ability to provide utility services for the phase 1 building from 96th 

Avenue been explored to eliminate the need for a public sewer extension? 

x. Provide detail(s) with respect to the site entrance approaches.  Are these 

concrete approaches up to and through the sidewalk? 

y. Change the public sidewalk section to be 5-inch concrete thickness (minimum 

6” within entrance drives). 

z. Compliance with the attached Village Fire & Rescue Department dated 

December 4, 2013.  

aa. The Sign Ordinance (Article X) allows for one (1) Multifamily Residential 

Development Identification Sign, except that if there is more than one 

entrance to the development from an arterial street or highway, then an 

additional sign may be approved at each entrance.  Sheet A2 depicts too 

many signs for the development.  If these multiple signs are going to be 

allowed, then the PUD ordinance language will need to allow for the additional 

signage.  If not, some of the proposed signs will need to be removed from the 

Plans. 

bb. Multifamily Residential Development Identification Signs shall meet the 

following requirements: 

 Minimum setback: five (5) feet from the right-of-way line or property 

lines, provided the signs are not located within any easements.  

 Maximum height: six (6) feet pursuant to the Prairie Ridge Commercial 

Covenant.  

 Maximum area: 36 square feet per face.  

 Landscaping shall extend a minimum of three feet in every direction from 

the base or other support structure of the sign, except if the sign is 

located in a boulevard island, then the landscaping shall not extend closer 

than two feet from the back of the curb of the boulevard island.  

 May be illuminated.  



10 
 

 May be placed on two supports or may be placed on a solid-appearing 

decorative base which supports a minimum of 75% of the display of the 

sign.  

 The sign supports or base shall be constructed of materials that 

complement the materials used in the development.  

NEXT STEPS: 

8. Upon approval of the Conceptual Plan by the Village Board the following documents 

shall be submitted to the Village for staff review: 

a. Ten full-size and one (1) reduced to 11” x 17” of the Final Development Plans 

for the development which shall include all of the components of the Site and 

Operational Plans requirements set forth in Section 420-57 of the Village 

Zoning Ordinance. 

b. Provide a list of the special provisions that are being requested as part of the 

PUD and the reasons for the requests.  Also provide the Community Benefits 

for the provision of a PUD. 

c. Written statement related to the requirements specified in Section 420-148 B 

(22) related to the conditional use permit. 

d. Material sample boards, including paint samples for all exterior building 

materials. (Colors and materials are not being approved with the Conceptual 

Plan). 

e. A draft of any proposed Restrictive Covenants for the project. 

f. Proposed Certified Survey Map, if the parcel is proposed to be subdivided. 

g. Ten full size and one (1) reduced to 11” x 17” of the proposed public/private 

improvements as required in the Development Agreement shall be submitted 

for review.  (See condition #2 above) 

9. After the above documents are received, the Village staff will review the 

plans and prepare the draft PUD Ordinance and draft Development 

Agreement for the Developer’s review.  

10. Upon the staff’s satisfactory review of the CSM (if proposed), the Final 

Development Plans, detailed Engineering Plans and Specifications and other 

items specified above, the CSM, Development Agreement, Conditional Use 

Permit and Zoning Text/Map Amendment applications and related 

application materials shall be submitted for consideration of the Plan 

Commission and Village Board.   

11. The CSM, Development Agreement, Conditional Use Permit and PUD 

Ordinance Amendments cannot be approved until the Final Plan including 

Final Engineering Plans and Specifications for all required public/private 

improvements are approved and the Development Agreement and all related 

documents are in final form. 

12. The Owner and the Developer of this project shall be one entity unless both will be 

signing and executing all of the developer documents.  

13. Upon Village approval of the Engineering Plans and Specifications for the 

public/private improvements specified in the Development Agreement four copies 

and a pdf copy of the plans shall be submitted to the Village so that estimates can be 

obtained for field staking and inspection.  



11 
 

14. Upon Village written approval of the Engineering Plans and Specification for the 

public sewer main extension, the Developer shall submit four (4) copies of the 

approved sewer plans, profiles and specifications to the Village so that the Village 

can request approval from the Kenosha Water Utility (KWU).   

15. The Developer’s engineer shall submit the sanitary sewer extension plans to 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WI DNR) after Village approval of 

sanitary sewer plans and specifications and WI DNR submittal forms. 

16. The Developer’s engineer shall submit the sanitary sewer extension plans to SEWRPC 

for their written approval. 

17. Upon Village approval of the Final Engineering Plans, Profiles and public and private 

improvements then a copy of the signed contracts, certificates of insurance, and 

performance and payment bonds shall be provided to the Village.  The contracts shall 

have the Developer’s name as shown on the title of the property.  The certificates of 

insurance shall also list the Village of Pleasant Prairie as an insured party.  All 

contractors shall be pre-qualified by the Village.  

18. At least two (2) weeks prior to Village Board consideration of the PUD 

(Zoning Map and Text Amendments), CSM, Development Agreement and 

related documents and, the following shall be finalized and submitted: 

a. The original CSM executed by the property owners and a digital copy of the 

CSM (Digital Information shall conform to the Village’s format requirements).   

b. Five (5) full size and one (1) 11 by 17 copy of the Final Engineering Plans and 

Specifications and Contracts for the private and public improvements and two 

(2) digital copies of the Final Engineering Plans (Digital Information shall 

conform to the Village’s format requirements).   

c. A pdf copy of all plans and specifications. 

d. Final Development Agreement (to be drafted by the Village and reviewed by 

the Developer). 

e. Final Memorandum of Development Agreement (to be drafted by the Village 

and reviewed by the Developer). 

f. Copies of the approval letters from the KWU, WI DNR and SEWRPC for the 

sanitary sewer extension. 

g. The Itemized Cost Breakdown Exhibit (to be drafted by the Village and 

reviewed by the Developer). IMPORTANT:  A draft Letter of Credit equal 

to the cost breakdown analysis (need to verify proper format and 

dollar amount of Letter of Credit prior submitting the Original Letter 

of Credit on bank letterhead). 

h. A Policy of Title Commitment equal to the cost of public improvements shall 

be provided to the Village.  The title policy shall indicate that the public 

improvements/easements are being dedicated free and clear of any 

encumbrance liens or judgments. The Title Report Commitment shall be 

updated the day before closing and again within 7 days after closing and 

recording of the documents. 

i. The Work in the Right-of-Way Permits. 

j. The Erosion Control Permit application, related plans and permit fee. 

k. A $2,000 street sweeping cash deposit. 



12 
 

l. A three-year minimum Irrevocable Letter of Credit (LOC) to the Village, in the 

amount of 125% of the total cost of public related improvements, including 

municipal water main, street trees, field staking, inspection and construction 

related services for public improvements.  A “draft” LOC shall be provided 

to the Village for staff review.  The “Final” LOC shall be provided prior 

to the Village at the closing. 

m. Verification of taxes and outstanding special assessments being paid.  Any 

outstanding taxes, special assessments or invoices shall be paid prior to the 

execution/signing of the CSM and Development Agreement and Memorandum 

of Development Agreement and other related documents. 

19. Upon Village Board’s approval of the CSM, Development Agreement and related 

documents and within seven (7) days of said approval, the Village will hold a closing 

to have the Final documents signed.  The Developer/Owner shall be responsible for 

recording all required documents at the Kenosha County Register of Deeds Office and 

provide the proof of recording to the Village within 72 hours of closing with the 

Village.   

20. Following the closing (on the same day), the Developer’s engineer shall conduct a 

pre-construction meeting at the Roger Prange Municipal Building with all of the 

contractors, utilities, Village on-site inspectors and Developer representatives (This 

meeting is required prior to public improvement field work commencing).   

a. The Developer’s engineer shall coordinate the set-up of this meeting and shall 

run the pre-construction meeting.   

b. The Developer’s engineer shall come prepared with extra copies of the plans 

and specifications, copies of the agenda for the meeting, copies of the 

construction schedule and copies of the listing of emergency contact 

personnel and phone numbers.  (The Village can provide a sample agenda). 

21. This development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance, the Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, the Village 

Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State of 

Wisconsin Statutes. 

22. All Village fees incurred by the Village Engineer, Village Inspectors and/or expert 

Assistants required by the Village throughout the development process will be billed 

directly to the Developer.  Such fees shall be paid in a timely manner.  If fees are 

not paid in a timely manner the Village will not continue to review said plans. 

23. All Village fees incurred by the Village Community Development Department and/or 

expert Assistants required by the Village throughout the development process will be 

billed directly to the Developer.  Such fees shall be paid in a timely manner.  If fees 

are not paid in a timely manner the Village will not continue to review said plans. 

24. Impact fees for this developer are due at the time of issuance of building permits.  

25. All required public improvements and private grading shall be completed, inspected, 

storm sewer televised and accepted, water sampled with safe samples, and approved 

by the Village including an as-built grading plan of subdivision prior to the issuance 

of any building permits in accordance with the Development Agreement on file with 

the Village. 

26. Prior to written occupancy of Phase 1 and as-built graphical data of all public and 

private sewer, water, and storm sewer facilities shall be provided to update the 

Village’s Geographical Information System.  Information shall conform to the 



13 
 

Village’s format requirements.  In addition, a paper copy prepared and stamped by 

the Engineer of Record for the project shall be submitted. 

27. Prior to occupancy of Phase 1, a record drawing of the utility plans will be required to 

reflect actual construction records and utility alignments.  Record drawing(s) of all 

the public and private water main, storm sewers, and sanitary sewers shall be 

prepared by the Engineer of Record for the project.   

28. Prior to written occupancy of the building and associated site improvements three (3) 

copies of an as-built plan stamped by a Wisconsin Registered Land Surveyor shall be 

submitted to the Village to verify that required building, above ground structures and 

all impervious surfaces meet the minimum setbacks and that all pavement markings 

were marked per the approve site plans and the grading of the site was completed 

pursuant to the approved plans.  In addition, written certification from the 

landscaping and signage companies that the landscaping and signage were installed 

pursuant to the approved final plans shall be submitted. 

 











 
Office of the Village  

Fire & Rescue Chief 

Doug McElmury 

 
 
 

 
VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 
FROM:  Doug McElmury, Chief Fire & Rescue Department 
CC:  Assistant Chief, Craig Roepke 

Lt. Thomas Clark, Fire & Rescue Department 
  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 
SUBJECT: Review of the Conceptual Plan for Senior Lifestyle, Prairie Ridge Boulevard and 

97th Court  
DATE:  4 December 2013 
 
 
The Fire & Rescue Department will be responsible for providing fire prevention inspections of 
this facility, twice annually. The concerns of the Fire & Rescue Department are as follows: 
 

1.  Distribution of Comments: the person who obtains the building permit to all 
Contractors and Subcontractors affected by this document shall distribute Copies of 
these comments. This document outlines critical times and deadlines. All recipients of 
this document need to become familiar with the contents. 

 
2. Compliance: A letter shall be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department prior to 

receiving a building permit, stating that the project will comply with all requirements 
addressed within this document. 

 
3. In the event a conflict in code(s) is identified, or a conflict with the insurance carrier 

criteria occurs, the more stringent shall apply.  In the event this conflicts with any codes 
adopted by the State of Wisconsin, the owner must petition the State directly for a 
variance.  The Owner must demonstrate that they will provide materials or design 
equivalent to the code or that they will exceed the code when petitioning the State and 
or Village when applicable. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

 

Upon review of the plans submitted, we have the following concerns: 

 This is a review of the conceptual plan, however, it is understood, that typical and 
customary fire protection features have not been shown of the plans, dated: 11/1/13 and 
11/8/13. 

 

 AED. Because of the occupancy type of the building the owner shall install one or more 
public access Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee use in the 
event of a sudden cardiac arrest. The Fire & Rescue Department can provide the training 
necessary to perform CPR and to operate the AED. 
 

 Fire Alarm Control Panel: The main FACP will be placed in the first floor main lobby, 
exact location to be finalized by the owner and the fire department. A remote 
annunciator with full function capability will also be installed near the fire sprinkler 
riser room inside the west service door.  
 

 Main lobby access shall be controlled by a keypad similar to the existing facilities in the 
area. The keypad code shall be the same as the other facilities.  
 

 If medical emergency room alarms are installed, the alarms shall be addressable and 
able to transmit the room number to the dispatch center.  
 

 Fire safety system plans, such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be 
submitted to the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services and 
also to this fire department for review. No installation of any fire protection system is 
allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  

 

 Fire hydrants: Does not meet the Village Ordinance of a maximum distance of 350 feet apart 
around the perimeter of the building. Hydrants shall always be visible and accessible; this 
includes future growth of landscaping.  

 

 Elevators: The proposed elevators need to comply with the Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Ordinance 180-20 Elevators. In particular section D (1) Acceptable minimum size.  
 

 Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that can be 
used as a “severe weather shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 
That area will be identified with signage. 
 

4. Fire and Rescue Department Review and Comments: 

A.  Site and Operational Permits 

 Site accessibility   

 Pumper Pad   Included on drawings  

 Fire hydrant spacing       



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

  
 

B.  Conditional Use and Operational  

1. Standpipe outlet locations  Not shown at this time. 
2. Fire alarm pull stations   Not shown at this time. 
3. Emergency and Exit Lighting  Not shown at this time.   

    4.    Fire extinguishers   Not shown at this time. 
 
 
 
5. Plan Review, Permits and Fees:  The plans for the fire protection underground, 

aboveground and fire alarm system shall be submitted for review a minimum of four (4) 
weeks before installation is scheduled to begin.  The Village will use an independent fire 
safety consultant for review of all fire protection plans submitted.  A satisfactory review 
must be completed before any permits will be issued and before construction can begin. 
 

6. Insurance Carrier: The Owner of this project shall submit to the insurance carrier for 
review the plans for both underground water distribution and fire protection prior to 
construction. The Fire & Rescue Department shall receive a copy of the comments when 
plans are submitted for review. 
 

7. The following information must be submitted with the sprinkler plans for review: 
Building height:     
Number of stories/floors:    
Elevators:      
Hazard class: 
Square footage of the building, each floor:   
Fire protection: 
 

8. The following Fees and Permits are generated directly from the Fire & Rescue 
Department. 
 
NOTE: Permits are required from the Fire & Rescue Department for the installation of 
water main in addition to any permits required by other Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Departments. 
 Bulk Water 

o Water Usage  
o Fire Protection Plans for Underground and Aboveground 
o Fire Alarm System Plans 
o Kitchen Hood Systems Plans 

o Occupancy Permit & Re-Inspection fees 
 
            An invoice for permit fees will be issued upon achieving a satisfactory review. Work 

cannot begin until all permits have been issued. A typical review turnaround is four 
weeks.      



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

 
 

9. Required Licenses:  A Wisconsin licensed fire protection contractor and Wisconsin licensed 
sprinkler fitters must install underground fire mains and aboveground fire protection.  
Periodic inspections of the job site will be made by fire inspectors to assure compliance. 

 
10. Pre-Construction Meeting:  A pre-construction meeting shall take place with the general 

contractor, the fire protection contractor, the Fire & Rescue Department and any other 
sub-contractor prior to the installation of any underground fire protection.  The purpose 
of this meeting is to assure that the requirements of the State of Wisconsin that only a 
Wisconsin licensed sprinkler fitter shall perform the installation of all devices, etc.  All 
parties will be asked to initial this document and or permit.  Any violation of the 
installing requirements will be reported in writing to the State of Wisconsin Department 
of Safety and Professional Services. 

 
11. Site Access:  Access shall be provided around the perimeter of the site for all Fire 

Department apparatus, and must comply with the State of Wisconsin and the 
International Building Code, 2009 edition. A minimum wall-to-wall turning radius of 
45’-0” shall be allowed for apparatus movement.   

a. All entrances from public streets, as well as road and driveways around the proposed 
building must be a minimum of 30 feet wide. 

b. All exterior exit pathways shall have a hard surface, leading to a hard surface.  
  

12. Sprinkler System:  The building shall be equipped with an “automatic fire sprinkler 
system”.  The systems shall be designed and constructed to the current edition of NFPA 
13, Automatic Fire Sprinklers and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-16, 
Automatic Fire Sprinklers. 

 
13. Water Service:  If it is determined that the building will be serviced by a combination 

municipal water and fire protection main, that main must be sized by the fire protection 
(sprinkler) contractor. No main is allowed to travel underground, under the building.  

 
14. Plan Review (Underground): A review of the underground drawings is required along 

with the fire protection drawings before a permit will be issued by the Fire & Rescue 
Department. Underground plans shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) weeks before 
installation begins. 

 
15. Standpipes:  In lieu of 1.5 inch hose stations, the building shall be equipped with 

standpipes that shall consist of 2-½ inch NST valve, capable of delivering 250 GPM, at 75 
PSI measured at the standpipe valve, when supplied by the fire department pumper.  
The standpipes shall be wet and placed in the landing of each stairwell.  

 
16. Fire Hydrants:  Fire hydrants shall be spaced no more than 350 feet apart around the 

perimeter of the building, per Village Ordinance 180-16. The insurance carrier must 
agree in writing to the hydrant spacing. As many hydrants as possible shall be supplied 
directly by municipal water.  The distance from the finished grade line to the lowest 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

discharge shall be no less than 18 inches and no more than 23 inches.  The Fire 
Department connections shall be located, and of sufficient height where typical snow fall 
or snow removal operations will not obstruct access. NOTE: Drawing dated 11/8/13 
does not meet this requirement.  
 

17. Fire Hydrant Acceptance: This project will include the installation of water mains for 
domestic and fire protection use. Prior to the fire sprinkler system connection to any 
new water mains (including water mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building 
and risers) must be hydrostatically tested flushed according to National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA–National Fire Code) Standard 24 and witnessed by the Fire Chief 
and or the Chief’s representative, the installing contractor and the fire sprinkler 
contractor at a minimum.  

 
18. Fire hydrant and water main flushing can be disruptive to the job site and requires 

significant coordination of all sub-contractors by the General Contractor. Nonetheless 
flushing is an essential part of assuring public safety. 
 

19. The General Contractor is highly encouraged to coordinate the flushing of all new water 
mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building and risers with both the sub-
contractors responsible, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Engineering Department, Fire & 
Rescue Department and the Water Utility Department, prior to seeking a ‘clean water 
sample’ on this site.  
 
NOTE: The Fire Protection Designer must meet with the Fire & Rescue Department 
before the underground drawings are submitted for review to finalize the placement of 
the hydrants. 

 
20. Pumper Pad:  There shall be dedicated space for a fire engine to have unobstructed 

access to the Pumper Pad.  Both the Fire Department Sprinkler connection and the fire 
hydrant shall be installed remote from the building and located a minimum distance 
from the building equal to the highest wall.  The fire hydrant shall be located no more 
than five (5) feet from the roadway and the Fire Department sprinkler connection shall 
be placed no more than five (5) feet from the fire hydrant.  The Fire Department 
connection shall be constructed along with an underground drain with access for 
inspection.  A guideline detail is attached and is meant to illustrate the requirements 
needed to meet the requirements stated in Village Ordinance 180-16. 

 
NOTE: The Fire Department Connection riser shall include a single five (5) inch Storz fitting. 
 

21. Bollards:  Shall be placed near fire hydrants, remote post indicator valves (PIV) and Fire 
Department connection(s) to prevent damage.  Bollards shall be 6 inches in diameter. 
Bollards shall not obstruct charged fire hoses.  It is recommended that the Fire 
Department approve the location of the bollard(s) before final placement is made.  

 
22. Strobe Light:  A strobe light shall be provided for each riser and installed vertically 

above each sprinkler water flow bell. The strobe light shall operate for a sprinkler water 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

flow.  The lens color shall be RED.  The strobe light shall meet Village specifications as 
found in section 180-16 K of the Sprinkler Ordinance. 

 
 

23. Fire Alarm System:  The system shall be fully addressable so that detailed 
information will be received about the device in alarm.  Utilizing a fire pull station, 
sprinkler water flow, or any other fire detection device that maybe installed in this 
building shall activate the internal fire alarm system.  
 

a. Manual Fire Alarm Pull Stations:  Shall be located at a minimum, immediately 
adjacent to each exterior door. Any additional exterior doors will be required to meet 
this requirement. The pull station shall not be placed in the area of the door, but 
immediately adjacent to the door jamb. 

b. Pull Stations and Audiovisual Alarms:  Shall be installed per ADA requirements. 

c. Smoke and Heat Detection:  Shall be installed as required. 

d. Tamper Switches:  Tamper switches shall be placed on all sprinkler valves and be 
identified on the annunciator panel. 

e. Fire Alarm Control Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be 
approved by the Fire & Rescue Department. The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall be 
located within the Fire Pump Room. The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler water 
flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull stations and any other fire 
detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

f. Annunciator Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be 
approved by the Fire and Rescue Department. The panel shall identify a fire sprinkler 
water flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull stations and any 
other fire detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

g. Central Station:  The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall transmit all fire alarm, tamper, 
trouble and supervisory signals to a central station that is certified by Underwriters 
Laboratories (UL) and/or Factory Mutual (FM) and approved by the Fire & Rescue 
Department. The owner shall provide such documentation for approval. It is 
recommended that the owner consult with the Fire & Rescue Department prior to 
signing any contracts with the Central station. 
1) The central station shall be provided with this information regarding the 

geographical location of this alarm: 
   
  Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin 
 

  Fire:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
  Medical:  Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
 
  Phone numbers: 
  Emergency:   (262) 694-1402 
  Non-emergency: (262) 694-7105 
  Business:  (262) 694-8027 

 
 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

24. Knox Box:  Knox Boxes shall be provided for the building, one each provided on the 
West, East (vestibule) and South side of the building. The Knox Boxes shall be Model 
4400, and of the recessed type. Two sets of all keys (Master, fire alarm pull station, 
annunciator, elevator, etc.) shall be placed within the box, as well as a copy of the pre-
fire plan.   

 
25. MSDS Knox Box: A minimum of One (1) Knox Box(s) designed for Material Safety Data 

Sheet storage shall be provided to contain the data sheets on all products that are 
considered hazardous within the facility. The MSDS Box(s) shall be installed at a 
location acceptable to both the owner and the fire department.  

 
26. Fire Extinguishers:  Shall meet NFPA 10 (Portable Fire Extinguishers) for the specific 

use of the building and be in sufficient number. The company providing the fire 
extinguishers shall submit a letter to the Fire & Rescue Department stating the locations 
and size of the extinguishers are in compliance with NFPA 10. 

 
27. Emergency and Exit Lighting:  Exit and Emergency Lighting shall be provided and shall 

have battery backup. Combination units are acceptable and recommended.  An 
Emergency Generator eliminates the need for battery backup.  Exit and Emergency 
Lighting shall not be placed on electrical circuits that cannot be disturbed or interrupted, 
this is for test purposes.  These circuits shall be clearly labeled.  

 
28. Final Inspection:  The General Contractor shall provide the following documentation at 

the time the Final Inspection takes place and before a building occupancy certificate will 
be issued. 

a. The fire protection contractor shall provide the owner with a letter (upon completion 
of the sprinkler work) stating the sprinkler system, or portion thereof, is “100% 
operational and built according to the design”, Village Ordinance, 180-16 N. 

b. Copy of contract with fire alarm central monitoring station. 
c. Copy of UL and/or FM certificate(s) for the fire alarm central monitoring station. 
d. Copies of the fire protection underground flushing documents. 
e. Copies of the underground and fire sprinkler hydrostatic test certificates. 
f. Copies of the fire sprinkler operational test certificates. 
g. Copies of the fire alarm test documents. 
h. Copies of other test documents such as, hood/duct, smoke, etc… 
i. The Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Department shall have all information needed for 

our pre-fire plan prior to occupancy. 
j. Provide two- (2) CD’s, one for the property owner and one for the Fire & Rescue 

Department.  The disks shall include all Floor plans and fire protection plans for the 
building in an as-built condition.   

k. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall provide for both the Owner and the Fire & 
Rescue Department the area within the building that can be used as a “severe weather 
shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 

l. Maps of the fire alarm and fire sprinkler system shall be placed in the fire pump room, near 
the fire alarm control panel; the maps shall be hung on the wall, with a waterproof 
covering and accessible to firefighters wearing bulky clothes and equipment. 



 

  

 

  

 

 

 8044 88th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015  262.694.8027  FAX 262.697-1901 

 

 

m. AED, in place at such time there is occupancy. 
n. A copy of the Emergency Plan must be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department before 

occupancy. 
o. Occupancy inspection fee and re-inspection fee will be assessed at the final inspection in 

accordance with ordinance 180-17. 
 

29.  Occupancy:  All fire and life safety requirements must be in place prior to any building 
being occupied. 

 







Senior Lifestyle in Pleasant Prairie Operational Plan 

In connection with its Conceptual Plan Application (“Application”), Senior Lifestyle Development LLC (“Senior Lifestyle”) 
submits the following responses to satisfy the Operational Plan Requirements: 

(1) Operational plan requirements. The applicant shall prepare and file as part of the application for site and 
operational plan approval an operational plan which shall include at least the following information or materials:  

(a) A detailed narrative description of the operations, processes and functions of the existing and proposed 
uses to be conducted in or on the real property constituting the site, together with any diagrams, maps, charts or 
other visual aids that are helpful in understanding the operations and any potential adverse impacts on 
neighboring properties.  

 Response:  The Senior Lifestyle Community will provide 96 senior living dwelling units in Phase 1 and 66 
 dwelling units in Phase 2.  The community will include central dining facilities, a multi-purpose room, arts and
 crafts room and fitness center.  As part of their monthly fee, residents will have access to meals and other 
 services such as housekeeping, linen service, transportation, and social and recreational activities.  Supportive 
 care and assisted living services from trained employees will also be available to residents who require 
 assistance with  activities of daily living ((ADLs) including management of medications, bathing, dressing, toileting, 
 ambulating and  eating) and residents who have Alzheimer’s disease or other forms of dementia. 

(b)  A detailed description of the proposed project or activity giving rise to the need for site and operational 
plan approval and a detailed explanation of how such project or activity relates to the site and to the existing or 
proposed operations to be conducted in or on the real property constituting the site.  

Response:  The proposed development and use of the site as a senior living community as described in 
Response (a) above will serve the needs of seniors now residing in the Pleasant Prairie and greater Kenosha 
market or desiring to move there to be closer to their adult children.  The site plan depicting how the project 
relates to the site was filed with the Application. 

(c)  Gross floor area of the existing building(s) and/or proposed addition.  

Response:  87,000 sq. ft. Phase 1 and ± 90,000 sq. ft. Phase 2. 

(d)  Anticipated hours of operation, hours open to the public, and hours of deliveries or shipments.  

Response:  The community will be open 24/7.  Visitors typically will visit loved ones at the community between  
8am and 9pm. 

(e)  Anticipated startup and total number of full- and part-time employees.  

Response:  Total full time equivalent employees at stabilization – 74. 

(f)  Anticipated number of shifts and the anticipated number of employees per shift.  

Response:  3 shifts:  28, 24 and 5 employees per shift, respectively. 

(g)  Anticipated maximum number of employees on site at any time of the day. 

Response:  50  

(h)  Number of anticipated students, participants or persons to be gathered in places of assembly, if 
applicable. 

Response:  N/A  

 



(i)  Number of parking spaces required per this chapter and the method used to calculate such number.  

Response:  57 

(j)  Number of existing and proposed on-site parking spaces to be provided (conventional spaces and 
handicapped spaces to be stated separately). 

Response:  61  

(k)  Anticipated daily average and maximum potential number of automobile trips to and from the site 
(excluding trucks). 

Response:  A traffic study has not been completed.  

(l)  Anticipated daily average and maximum potential number of truck trips to and from the site.  

Response:  Typically up to 2 supply deliveries per day and 2-3 times per week trash removal. 

(m)  Types of goods and materials to be made, used or stored on site.  

Response:  Primarily goods and materials to be used are foodstuffs and household cleaning supplies. 

(n)  Types of equipment or machinery to be used on site. 

Response:  Commercial kitchen equipment, HVAC equipment and lawn maintenance equipment.  

(o)  Types of solid or liquid waste materials which will require disposal.  

Response:  Waste materials common to a commercial kitchen. 

(p)  Method of handling, storing and disposing of solid or liquid waste materials. 

Response:  Standard kitchen practices will be observed regarding waste disposal.  

(q)  Methods of providing site and building security other than the Village Police Department. 

Response:  Visitors must sign in with the receptionist or night staff.  

(r)  Description of the methods to be used to maintain all buildings, structures, site improvements and sites in 
a safe, structurally sound, neat, well cared for and attractive condition. 

Response:  Senior Lifestyle has a site maintenance and capital improvement program that is overseen by its 
corporate office.  

(s)  Description of potential adverse impacts to neighboring properties or public facilities and measures to be 
taken to eliminate or minimize such adverse impacts.  

Response:  We do not anticipate the development will have adverse impacts to neighboring properties or public 
facilities. 

(t)  A list of all local, county, state and federal permits or approvals required for the project or activity giving 
rise to the need for site and operational plan approval and copies of such permits and approvals that have been 
obtained. 

Response:  Senior Lifestyle will apply for and obtain operational licenses, approximately 6 months prior to 
opening, incuding a Community Based Residential Facilities license and registration as a Resident Care 
Apartment Complex from the Department of Health Services, State of Wisconsin.  



(2) Operational plan standards. In addition to any other applicable requirements or standards specified in this 
chapter, the following requirements or standards shall apply to the operational plan:  

(a) No use shall be conducted in such a way as to constitute a public or private nuisance.  

(b) No use shall be conducted in such a way as to violate any of the performance standards set out in § 420-38 of 
this chapter.  

(c) (reserved) 

(d) No owner, occupant or user of real property shall conduct a use so intensively that there is inadequate 
provision of on-site parking spaces and/or loading spaces to accommodate the needs of such use.  

(e) All buildings, structures, site improvements and sites shall be maintained in a safe, structurally sound, neat, 
well cared for and attractive condition.  

(f) Within a building, any provision of live entertainment in connection with a business or club use involving the 
selling or service of alcoholic beverages shall comply with the following restrictions:  

[1] Live entertainment shall be provided only on a raised platform that is not less than 23 inches higher than the 
elevation of the surrounding floor surfaces where customers, members or their guests are sitting, standing or 
dancing;  

[2] Customers, members or their guests shall at all times be separated from the raised platform on which live 
entertainment is being provided by a distance of not less than four feet and a physical barrier to mark and 
enforce such separation distance; and  

[3] There shall be no touching of any kind between entertainers and customers, members or their guests.  

(g) No proposed new or expanded use shall be permitted to create or significantly exacerbate unsafe traffic 
conditions on any street or highway in the Village.  

(h) Indoor pyrotechnic displays are prohibited.  

 









































     

 
Tuesday, October 15, 2013  Page 1 of 3  www.pleasantprairieonline.com 
   

Daniel Honore - Director 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Office of Information Technology 

8600 Green Bay Road  
Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504   

Phone: 262.925.6771  Fax: 262.948-8998 
Email: dhonore@vil.pleasantprairie.wi.us 

 

To:   Michael Pollocoff, Village Administrator  

   Village of Pleasant Prairie Board 

From:  Daniel Honore, Director 

CC:   Jane Romanowski, Village Clerk 

Date:   December 2, 2013 

Subject:  Request to replace backup and storage infrastructures 

 

 

REQUEST:  

The Office of Information Technology is requesting approval to purchase three devices that will 

significantly improve the reliability and performance of the Village’s backup and storage 

infrastructures. 

 

BACKGROUND:  

The current storage infrastructure is decentralized and consists of one 10-year old EMC CX500 fiber 

channel Storage Area Network (SAN) device and a multitude of server based storage in various 

buildings.  The SAN device reached end-of-life two years ago and does not contain enough storage 

capacity to support the needs of the Village.  The server based storage is spread out amongst the 

Village’s buildings and requires management of each individual device thus greatly increasing the 

cost and the time spent managing the Village’s storage infrastructure. 

The current backup infrastructure consists of LTO-2 at the Roger Prange building, LTO-2 at the 

Village Hall and LTO-5 at the RecPlex.  This is a very inefficient system for backing up the Village’s 

data.  The tapes are not interchangeable between all of the tape drives.  The system requires 

manual intervention on a daily basis.  Tape drives are slower than hard drives and, as the amount of 

data generated by the Village grows, continuing to invest in older technology is not in the best 

interest of the Village or its taxpayers. 



 

 
Tuesday, October 15, 2013  Page 2 of 3  www.pleasantprairieonline.com 
   

The Office of Information Technology is in the process of developing a Comprehensive Storage Plan 

(CSP).  The CSP consists of three interlocking components.  The first component is to improve and 

centralize storage.  Centralizing storage will reduce expenses by removing most of the remote 

storage devices and reducing the number of remote servers thereby saving on electrical and HVAC 

needs and eliminating the expense of supporting and replacing the servers used for storage.  The 

second component is to improve and centralize our backup system and integrate a disaster 

recovery option.  We will implement two backup appliances.  One will be the main backup device 

and the other will be used for disaster recovery.  Initially the second device will reside at the 

RecPlex but will eventually be moved to the Kenosha County datacenter after we establish a high-

speed data link between our two facilities.  The older tape drives will be decommissioned and the 

third will be repurposed as our long-term archive solution.  We will also be evaluating the possibility 

of repurposing the current SAN as our long-term archive solution.  The third component comes from 

the Comprehensive Communications Plan and requires an upgraded communication’s infrastructure 

with high-speed Wide Area Network links. 

 

PROCESS: 

The Office of Information Technology solicited a variety of vendors and technologies.   

 

Storage - We evaluated EMC, NetApp, Nimble and Fusion-io.  Each vendor’s technology goes 

about storing and retrieving data using a variety of media in different ways.  After researching the 

technologies and vendors, reviewing demonstrations and soliciting bids we determined that Fusion-

io will provide the best opportunity to the Village at this time.   

 

Backup – We evaluated AppAssure, BackupExec, CommVault and Unitrends.  Using similar 

research methods as the storage project, we determined that Unitrends provides the best 

opportunity for the Village at this time. 

  



 

 
Tuesday, October 15, 2013  Page 3 of 3  www.pleasantprairieonline.com 
   

The following chart details the bids received: 

STORAGE Model 
Capacit

y Cost 1-yr Maint 
Cost w/ 1-
yr Maint 3-yr Maint 

Cost w/ 3-yr 
Maint 

Nimble CS240 24TB $48,000.00 $3,933.33 $51,933.33 $11,800.00 $59,800.00 

Trancendent 
(Fusion-io) N5-100 32TB $46,800.00 $3,933.33 $50,733.33 $11,800.00 $58,600.00 

shi (Fushion-io) N5-100 32TB $83,785.26   $83,785.26     

        

BACKUP Model 
Capacit

y Cost 1-yr Maint 
Cost w/ 1-
yr Maint 3-yr Maint 

Cost w/ 3-yr 
Maint 

AppAssure DL4000 20 TB $50,338.00       $50,338.00 

Unitrends RC823 24 TB $16,096.50 $2,115.54 $18,212.04 $8,388.18 $18,892.56 

  RC824 32 TB $22,396.50 $3,943.54 $26,340.04 $11,671.38 $34,067.88 

shi (Unitrends) RC823 24 TB $20,633.91 $5,158.71 $25,792.62   $36,110.04 

CommVault EBA802 40TB $88,182.82 $18,812.85 $106,995.67   $144,621.37 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Office of Information Technology recommends the following: 

 

Storage – Authorization to purchase one Fusion-io N5-100 Storage Area Network for the one-time 

cost of $58,600 with no recurring annual maintenance for 5 years.  This includes an incentive 

whereby we receive 5 years of maintenance for the cost of 3 years. 

 

Backup – Authorization to purchase two Unitrends RC824 appliances for a one-time cost of 

$52,573.92 and recurring annual maintenance beginning January 1, 2015 of $7,780.92.  This 

includes an incentive whereby we receive the benefit of 3-year maintenance pricing but pay 

annually. 

 

Authorization for the Village Administrator to execute the maintenance contracts with each of the 

two vendors. 





















































RESOLUTION #13-28 

   

RESOLUTION RELATING TO AMENDMENT 

 OF THE 2013 BUDGET 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, authorizes amendments 

to the 2013 Budget, and; 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to make certain adjustments in departmental budgets prior to 

the end of the fiscal year, and; 

 

WHEREAS, certain expenses of the Municipal Court and Inspection department has 

exceeded budget, but has been offset by an increase in revenue;  

 

WHEREAS, a budget amendment is necessary to increase budgeted expenses and 

respectively increase budgeted revenue the same amount to compensate for the increase in 

expenses and; 

 

WHEREAS, the 2013 budget in total remains unchanged; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Board of the Village of 

Pleasant Prairie hereby authorizes amendments to the 2013 Budget. 

 

Passed this 9
th

 of December, 2013 

 

 

__________________________ 

John P. Steinbrink, President 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk 

 



2013 Budget Amendment 

Municipal Court

Org Object Description Reason Amount

10452111 451001 Municipal Court Revenue Additional Revenue 6,436.00

Total Revenue Increase 6,436.00

10512111 500113 Elected Salaries Difference in Pay Structure 3,000.00

10512111 500202 Employment Evaluations Employee Background Check not budgeted 28.00      

10512111 500206 Contractual Printing Additional Printing 18.00      

10512111 500214 Consultant/Contractual Services Additional Jail Fees 3,000.00

10512111 500286 Credit Card Processing Fees Additional Fees 300.00    

10512111 500510 Property & Liability Insurance Increase in Premium 90.00      

Total Expense Increase 6,436.00



2013 Budget Amendment 

Inpection

Org Object Description Reason Amount

10442410 443001 Single Family Building Permits More Permits Issued 8,925.00

Total Revenue Increase 8,925.00

10522410 500210 Attorney Fees Unbudgeted 125.00    

10522410 500214 Consultant/Contractual Services Unbudgeted ‐ Contracted Inspector 7,500.00

10522410 500300 Membership & Subscriptions Sandro Assoc Membership 100.00    

10522410 500310 Office Supplies Building Permit Signs 1,200.00

Total Expense Increase 8,925.00



             

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6730  FAX 262.694.4734 

Office of the Village  
Director of Human Resources 

Carol Willke  

 

 TO: Village Board 

  Michael Pollocoff, Village Administrator 

 

 From:  Carol Willke, Director of Recreation 

 

 RE:   Wisconsin Juniors Volleyball Club Partnership Agreement 

 

 

 Consider extending the Partnership Agreement for an additional 5 years.  
 

The RecPlex and the Wisconsin Junior Volleyball Club have enjoyed a very successful partnership that 

has allowed the RecPlex to collect rental fees for use of the field house while allowing local volleyball 

players a state of the art facility to practice at and to hold local, regional and national volleyball 

tournaments. 

  

The Recreation Department and Village staff recommends renewing the partnership with Wisconsin 

Juniors Volleyball Club agreement for an additional 5 years from 2013-2018. 

  

  
























	Agenda - December 9 2013
	Minutes - November 18 2013
	7A. Scottys Mobile Home License Renewal
	8A. Concept Plan-Senior Lifestyle Project
	Plan Sheet Changes
	Fire Comments 12-4-13
	Application
	Concept Plans

	8B. IT backup and storage units purchase
	8C. Fire Station 1 Construction Management Agr
	Construction Mgmt Agr Rate Schedules

	8D. Resolution 13-28 2013 Budget amendments
	Budget Amendment - Municipal Court_Inspection

	8E. RecPlex -Wisconsin Juniors Agreement
	Partnership Agreement


